
From: Zavitz Richard
To: Doyne Stephanie; Wild Mark (MD)
Cc: Adams Simon; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia
Subject: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Date: 25 September 2018 11:13:19
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update_240918_for review.docx

Hi Stephanie,
Find attached the latest version of the briefing note. Please let the group know if you or Mike
 have any comments.
Mark – Howard mentioned you may want to add some notes to the system integration section –
 please include as needed.
Thank you
Richard
_________________________________________________________________
Richard Zavitz
Principal Sponsor | Crossrail Joint Sponsor Team
Phone:  (auto  |
4th Floor North Wing, 55 Broadway, London SW1H 0DB | Email:
 tfl.gov.uk
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		TRANSPORT FOR LONDON



		BRIEFING NOTE 

Subject: Weekly Mayoral update on Crossrail / Elizabeth line

Date: 24 September 2018

Manifesto commitment(s)

Not applicable

Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS)



A good public transport experience


Proposal 57: The Mayor, through TfL, will work

with the DfT to open the Elizabeth line in 2019, with services initially providing 24 trains per hour through central London and increasing in frequency during the 2020s as demand requires.







		

		



		

		



		



		





		





Purpose 

1.1 Weekly update to the Mayor outlining progress and challenges ahead of the launch of the Elizabeth line. 

1.2 The Mayor is asked to NOTE this briefing.

Routeway construction:

1. Critical programme metrics for routeway construction are tracked weekly and actively monitored by Crossrail Ltd (CRL). The focus is particularly on installation release note (IRN) and static testing progress for the key routeway commodities. Further details on progress will be included once the revised Master Operating Handover Schedule (MOHS) is finalised in October.   

Testing and Commissioning

1.4 The readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction took place on 21 September. The review chaired by an independent expert (Phil Threlfall) concluded that against key rolling stock, signalling software and infrastructure installation and testing criteria, 5/2 dynamic testing would not commence on 22 October. No revised date for the start of the 5/2 dynamic testing was concluded at the meeting. CRL will consider the results of this first review and then put in place next steps.

1.5 Dynamic Testing window number 12 will take place on 29-30 September. Tests will include transition testing to the Great Eastern, testing at line speed in the tunnels and platform train interface testing. 

Systems integration

1.6 To strengthen Crossrail’s approach to systems integration, CRL convened a meeting involving CRL, TfL, RfL and MTR to agree a refreshed approach. Key actions were: 

· Commitment to a “one-team approach” (including key suppliers such as Bombardier Transportation, Siemens and MTR) based on greater transparency and openness in dealings with one another

· Gain further commitment from Siemens particularly through provision of adequate resources, including nominated Germany-based leaders 

· Closer involvement of  BT and increase the transparency of programme and status; 

· Improve ATCs testing and commissioning activity performance.

1.7 CRL has appointed a systems integration specialist who will review the current status of systems integration activity and put forward recommendations relating to revised structure, process, governance and accountabilities.

Train production and testing 

1.8 A detailed update on progress with Bombardier is provided in Appendix A. 

Stations

1. Overall station completion is measured periodically/every four weeks. The Period 5 results are:



		

		Actual (%)

		Planned (%)



		Paddington

		94

		94



		Bond Street

		92

		94



		Tottenham Court Road

		95

		98



		Farringdon

		98.0

		99



		Liverpool Street

		92

		94



		Whitechapel

		94

		98



		Woolwich

		96

		98





1. The new (MOHS) is due to be finalised in October and will include planned handover dates for the stations. 

Network Rail works for each stage

Stage 5:

1. The review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued. The need and options for [REDACTED] were discussed at the DfT portfolio board on 13 September and will now be raised at NR’s Executive committee on 2 October. 

1. NR will commence enabling work at Ealing Broadway, West Ealing, Southall and Acton Main Line this month and to maximise use of the important Christmas works period.  

1. Local authorities are likely to challenge vigorously any reductions in scope. This will add to schedule pressure which will have already been extended by the potential need to reprice the works. NR is publically committed to delivering these station upgrades by December 2019. 

Approvals for each stage

1. The overall approvals for each stage will be updated when the detailed delivery schedule is finalised by the end of October.

Appendix

1. Appendix A: Joint TfL and Bombardier Weekly Report 








Appendix A: Joint TfL and Bombardier Weekly Report 



Elizabeth line - Bombardier Weekly Report 24 September 2018



Note No: 26



Key Activities and Issues



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, which is in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken to address this are summarised below, notably the introduction of 9-Car units into passenger service on Networks Rail’s infrastructure, planned for November. The intention is to re-start train delivery so that the remaining fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



· Old Oak Common Depot is in full operation. The fourth (of four) routes into and out of the depot has yet to be brought into use but the works rest with Network Rail on their infrastructure. 

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line, increasing in the next month to eleven with the conclusion of train modification works.  

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  MDSAF in the last week is in the range 4,191 to 6,635 miles.



· The latest Siemens signalling software for the Central Section is being tested at Melton Test Track with the latest ‘R7.2.2.5’ train-software release. Testing started on 12 September. As of 20 September, 21 out of the 29 formal tests to be undertaken have been completed with 7 passed, 4 are under analysis and 10 failed. Some of the more complex tests have been scheduled early in the cycle and the necessary fixes are already being programmed into further releases by Siemens and Bombardier. This is scheduled for 16 November.    



· BT continues to undertake work to validate the software which can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail. This will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and will help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels. The target for making submissions to the necessary safety bodies is 5 November.

 

· The next Test Window is scheduled for 28/29 September and will include further testing of the transition between the CBTC signalling and national rail (TPWS) signalling at Stratford, at the eastern end of the central tunnels.  



· Weekly meetings and daily calls continue between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL, to coordinate software releases, testing and bug fixing and respond to the results of Melton and central section dynamic testing. Bombardier and Siemens are also meeting bilaterally and TfL is holding escalation meetings with them where necessary. A plan is now being implemented to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s capability and resource to manage system integration. 

 

· Development of Release 7.3 on-train software continues. This will be used for Heathrow services utilising the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system. Bombardier has submitted a programme which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service for by 6 February 2019. TfL and BT continue to explore the potential to start driver training in advance of this date but this would also require an additional, specific safety case and the immediate focus is on the 7.2 series software for dynamic testing in the central tunnels.    

 

· With a large amount of testing and a number of software releases, updates and derogations all requiring approval, software quality and assurance are the continuing focus. There was a meeting with BT senior management on 11 September at which their plans and initiatives to improve software quality were discussed.   




Key Programme Milestones

		Stage 2

		P80 Programme (V3_5_1) 11thJan 

		Current Forecast



		Approval for driver training on Great Western routes excluding European Train Control System   

		27 Feb

		Completed 



		Commence build of TCMS release 7.3 (the Stage 2 passenger service software)   

		26 June

		Commenced 

30 July



		Independent Safety Assessment body (‘ISA’) approval for European Train Control System MR3 software necessary for Stage 2

		6 Aug

		Under review



		Independent Safety Assessment body (‘ISA’) approval for TCMS release 7.3  

		18 Sept

		Under review



		Approval for European Train Control System driver training on Great Western  

		24 Aug

		Under review



		Approvals for European Train Control System  Passenger Service 

		28 Sept

		6 Feb 19

Under review



		Stage 3 

		 

		 



		Completion of Transition testing at Melton ready for Central Operating Section Dynamic Testing

		29 Jan

		Completed



		Commence build of TCMS release 7.2 (the Stage 3 passenger service software) 

		24 April

		Completed 



		Independent Safety Assessment body (‘ISA’) approval for European Train Control System MR2 software necessary for Stage 3

		22 May

		Completed 



		Approval of CBTC signalling for Central Operating Section Trial Operations 

		22 Jun

		Completed



		Availability of 22 trains for Trial Running in the Central Operating Section

		13 Aug

		Unit Acceptance Paused



		Approval of Class 345 for Stage 3 Passenger Service

		10 Oct

		16 Nov



		Start of Stage 3 Passenger Service 

		9 Dec

		Autumn 2019



		Old Oak Common Depot

		 

		 



		Section A Brought into Use

		1 Mar

		Completed



		Section B1 Brought into Use

		11 Apr

		Completed



		Section C Brought into Use

		30 May 

		Completed
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From: Zavitz Richard
To: "
Subject: DRAFT weekly briefing
Date: 17 September 2018 11:05:42
Attachments: DRAFT Weekly Mayor Update 180918v2.docx

Hi Andy,
Find attached the draft of the weekly note. It’s mostly consistent with the note from the call. Let
 me know if you have any comments.
Thanks
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

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed


		TfL Restricted



		TRANSPORT FOR LONDON



		BRIEFING NOTE 

Subject: Weekly Mayoral update on Crossrail / Elizabeth line

Date: 18 September 2018

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

1. At current levels of productivity the 22 October 2018 completion date and the risk date of 5 November for routeway construction are unlikely to be achieved. Installation is forecast to be complete by 22 October, but testing is indicating slippage to later in November.

1. IRN progress and static testing results for the key routeway commodities are circulated to CRL executives weekly as part of tracking readiness for the start of the 5 day testing/2 day construction approach. This was due to commence on 5 November but is now at risk despite commitments at very senior level by the joint venture contractor (Alstom TSO Costain).

1. Pressure continues to be applied on the joint venture contractor to complete their works in line with the schedule by improving productivity and planning. 

1. The results of the second part of the independent schedule review commissioned by the Sponsors will be presented at the Joint Sponsor Board on 20 September.

Signalling implementation and testing

1. Dynamic Testing window number 11 took place on 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR) completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface with the Great Western. Testing wasxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	Comment by Lucy Findlay: Need to find out on Monday how things went

1. A readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction will take place on 21 September. This review will be chaired by an independent expert and attended by George Clarke, London Underground, Director of Engineering. The criteria being assessed have been shared with the project Sponsors.    

Train production and testing 

1. A detailed update on progress with Bombardier is provided in Appendix A. 

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







Elizabeth line - Bombardier Weekly Report 17 September 2018



Note No: 25



Key Activities and Issues



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, which is in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken to address this are summarised below with the urgency being to re-start train delivery so that the remaining fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



· Old Oak Common Depot is in full operation. The fourth (of four) routes into and out of the depot has yet to be brought into use but the works rest with Network Rail on their infrastructure. 

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line, increasing in the next month to eleven with the conclusion of train modification works. Availability continues to be very good on both routes. 

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly. The most common event (though with small impact per incident and seen on the 7-car fleet only) remains the loss of the driver’s information screen requiring a manual reset. Bombardier have recently introduced a further operational control that reduces the incidence of this failure. MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 3,842 and 8,506 miles.



· The new Siemens signalling software for the Central Section, has been delivered to the Melton test-track and is being tested with the latest ‘R7.2.2.4’ train-software release. Initial testing w/c 10 September identified a number of issues and following rectification testing started on 12 September. To date 2 tests have been completed successfully out of 4 attempted. 



· The plan is to complete testing at Melton this week and make the associated changes and fixes to both the Siemens and Bombardier software such that this new configuration can be used in Crossrail Dynamic Testing, currently targeted for 22 October. The intention also remains to validate a derivative software version by 5 November (previously October) that can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail. This will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels.

 

· Over the past weekend, testing took place on the transition between the Crossrail Central Operating Section and the Network Rail tracks at Westbourne Park. This is also the transition between the CBTC and TWPS signalling systems. [Add words about success/failures on Monday]



· Weekly meetings continue between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL, to coordinate software releases, testing and bug fixing, and to take account of delays to central section infrastructure and changes to dynamic testing. Bombardier and Siemens are also meeting bilaterally and TfL is holding escalation meetings with them where necessary. A plan to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s system integration capability and resource is now underway. 

 

· Development of Release 7.3 on-train software continues. This will be used for Heathrow services utilising the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system. Bombardier has submitted a programme, currently under review by TfL, which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service by 6 February 2019. TfL and BT continue to explore the potential to start driver training in advance of this date but this would also require an additional, specific, safety case.   

 

· With a large amount of testing and a number of software releases, updates and derogations all requiring approval, software quality and assurance is the continuing focus. There was a meeting with BT senior management on 11 September at which their plans and initiatives to improve software quality were discussed. Good quality software reduces the burden on testing and assurance resources which are critical constraints on the ability to bring updated software into use. Bombardier has introduced a number of additional signalling assurance engineers. 






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

		8 Oct

Under review



		Independent Safety Assessment body (‘ISA’) approval for TCMS release 7.3  

		18 Sept

		26 Nov

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
Subject: DRAFT weekly note
Date: 11 September 2018 12:50:19
Attachments: DRAFT_Weekly Mayor Update 110918.docx

Hi Andy,
Find attached the draft weekly note. Let me know if you have any comments.
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

Date: 11 September 2018

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

1. Critical programme metrics for routeway construction are tracked weekly and actively monitored by Crossrail Ltd (CRL). Progress against the plan can vary week by week as the contractor coordinates and prioritises its activity:

· Cabling: 96 per cent complete (vs forecast 98 per cent complete): 2,442m completed in week 

· Tunnel Walkways: 91 per cent complete (vs forecast 90 per cent complete):  1,244m completed in week

· Firemain: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 89 per cent complete)

· Drainage: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 95 per cent complete): all stations shafts and portals tie-in inspections completed

· Permanent tunnel ventilation: 97 per cent complete (vs forecast 98 per cent complete): Final completion is pending the Installation Release Notes (IRN) sign off, snagging items and resolution of constraints around Bond Street West

1. Static testing of all assets remains behind plan. Measured by the first testing stage of station IRNs, actual completion is at 40 per cent (vs plan 87 per cent). IRNs are being prioritised and actively monitored by all contracts but progress is slowed by both the resource challenges to produce the evidence documentation and the progress of the physical works.  CRL is monitoring the process across all sites and has reviewed the latest IRN completion statistics for accuracy.  Actual completion has reduced due to a reassessment of how completion was being measured. There was a slight difference in interpretation of what complete included but all metrics are reviewed on a regular basis for accuracy. 

Signalling implementation and testing

1. Dynamic Testing window number 10 took place on 7 September. Testing was reduced to a single day due to Network Rail (NR) overhead line works for Crossrail not being completed in time to enable transition testing on the interface of the Great Western. CRL has now agreed a plan with NR and stakeholders to enable completion of a minimum work scope for overhead line works during two nights this week to enable transition testing at low speeds to take place during test window 11 commencing 15 September. DfT is assisting with prioritising NR activity to ensure works are completed for transition testing on 15 September.

1. CRL will switch from the current approach to Dynamic Testing of 11 day construction/3 day testing to a 5 day testing/2 day construction approach on 5 November 2018 which is a key milestone to ensure we launch Stage 3 in autumn 2019.  This will enable a more concentrated focus on software testing and any bug fixing required.    

Train production and testing 

1. A detailed update on progress with Bombardier is provided in Appendix A. 

Stations

1. Overall station completion is measured periodically/every four weeks. The Period 4 results are:



		

		Actual (%)

		Planned (%)



		Paddington

		93.9

		93.9



		Bond Street

		91.9

		94.3



		Tottenham Court Road

		94.8

		98.0



		Farringdon

		98.0

		98.6



		Liverpool Street

		92.4

		93.7



		Whitechapel

		93.5

		98.2



		Woolwich

		95.5

		98.0





Network Rail works for each stage



Stage 5:

1. The review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued. The figure has been amended from our previous estimate of [REDACTED] because we now have more knowledge about the tender estimated the NR has received.  NR has shared an options report with Sponsors that outline the available options and the priorities for the works and will present to the DfT portfolio board on 13 September.   

1. NR are still planning to undertake enabling work at the western stations over the important Christmas works period that will include the installation of the overbridges.  

1. Local authorities are likely to challenge vigorously any reductions in scope. This will add to schedule pressure which will have already been extended by the potential need to reprice the works. NR is publically committed to delivering these station upgrades by December 2019. 

Approvals for each stage

1. The overall approvals for each stage have not changed since the last weekly update but will be updated when the detailed delivery schedule is finalised by the end of October.

Appendix

1. Appendix A: Joint TfL and Bombardier Weekly Report 




Appendix A: Joint TfL and Bombardier Weekly Report 



Elizabeth line - Bombardier Weekly Report 10 September 2018



Note No: 24



Key Activities and Issues



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. 



· Old Oak Common Depot is in full operation. The fourth (of four) routes into and out of the depot has yet to be brought into use but the works rest with Network rail on their infrastructure. 

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line, increasing in the next month to eleven with the conclusion of train modification works.   Availability continues to be very good on both routes. 

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 5,000 miles by end of Period 5 (18August) and 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  The most common event (though with small impact per incident and seen on the 7-car fleet only) is still the loss of the driver’s information screen requiring a manual reset. Bombardier have recently introduced a further operational control that reduces the incidence of this failure and the benefit of this is beginning to be seen in the reliability figures but the root-cause defect requires a train-control software update to permanently correct. MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 4,300 and 8,100 miles.



· The new Siemens signalling software for the Central Section, correcting defects in a previous version has been delivered to the Melton test-track and is being tested with an updated ‘R7.2.2’ train-software release for integrated testing through to the end of September. Initial testing w/c 10 September identified a number of issues and both Bombardier and Siemens are making further adjustments before restarting testing this week.



· The combined focus is on completing testing at Melton so that this new configuration can be used in Crossrail Test Window 12 (29 September) and subsequently in Crossrail Dynamic Testing which is targeted for 22 October. The intention also remains to validate a derivative software version in October that can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail which will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels.

 

· Weekly meetings continue between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL, to coordinate software releases, testing and bug fixing, and to take account of delays to central section infrastructure and changes to dynamic testing. Bombardier and Siemens are also meeting bilaterally and TfL is holding escalation meetings with them where necessary. A plan to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s system integration capability and resource is now in development. 

 

· Development testing has continued for Release 7.3 on-train software, which will be used for Heathrow services over the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system. Bombardier has submitted a programme, currently under review by TfL, which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service by 6 February 2019. TfL and BT are exploring the potential to bring this date forward but this would also require a specific safety case to allow sufficient time for driver training and familiarisation in advance.   

 

· With a large amount of testing and a number of software releases, updates and derogations all requiring approval, software quality and assurance is the continuing focus. Good quality software reduces the burden on testing and assurance resources which are critical constraints on the ability to bring updated software into use. Bombardier has introduced a number of additional signalling assurance engineers. 






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
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From: Doyne Stephanie
To: Mannah Sylvia
Subject: EL note
Date: 20 September 2018 11:32:38
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 200918.docx

Minor changes from Mike. If you’re happy I will send across to City Hall now.
Kind regards
Stephanie
Stephanie Doyne
Corporate Affairs Manager | Corporate Affairs
Phone:  (auto  | Mobile: 
11th floor (Y8), Palestra, 197 Blackfriars Road, London SE1 8NJ |
Email: tfl.gov.uk

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

Date: 18 20 September 2018

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

1. Critical programme metrics for routeway construction are tracked weekly and actively monitored by Crossrail Ltd (CRL).

1. The weekly progress figures report now focuses on the Interim Releases Notices (IRNs) and static testing for these items.

1. At current levels of productivity the 22 October 2018 completion date and the risk date of 5 November for routeway construction are unlikely to be achieved. Installation is forecast to be complete by 22 October, but testing is indicating slippage to later in November.

1. IRN progress and static testing results for the key routeway commodities are circulated to CRL executives weekly as part of tracking readiness for the start of the 5 day testing/2 day construction approach. This was due to commence on 5 November but is now at risk despite commitments at a very senior level by the joint venture (JV) contractor (Alstom TSO Costain) including Alstom’s European Executive Committee level. CRL met with the JV’s CEOs last week to reinforce the requirements needed and they gave a strong commitment to deliver the requirements by 22 October. Pressure continues to be applied on the joint venture contractor to complete their works in line with the schedule by improving productivity and planning. 

1. The results of the second part of the independent schedule review commissioned by the Sponsors will be presented at the Crossrail Sponsor Board on 20 September.

Signalling implementation and testing



1.8 Dynamic Testing window number 11 took place on 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR) completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface with Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive activities and tests were achieved including:

· Positive testing of the transition from TPWS to CBTC moving from the Great Western to the central tunnel section on Line 6 

· For the first time, trains were fully prepared offsite ahead of time and successfully transited directly in from the Old Oak Common Depot for the testing window 

· A new tool recording train data and CCTV from the driver’s cab was used, making analysis of results easier 

· Outcomes were largely in line with pre-testing at the Crossrail Integration Facility (CIF) meaning future tests should be more predictable.

1. What was not achieved during the testing includes:

· The full transition from CBTC to ECTS/TPWS leaving the tunnel 

· The physical location of some track balises were not consistent with the on-board track database 

· The train still requires resetting when reversing and operating using the more complex modes.

1. Further software updates from both Siemens and BT (currently under test at Melton) are needed to address these issues and considerable further transition testing (but less disruptive to NR) will be required. Subject to further Melton testing this week, new train and wayside software is expected to be available for use in October. In addition CRL continues to look at enhancements to collaboration between the two contracts and at improving System Integration more widely.

1. A readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction will take place on 21 September. This review will be chaired by an independent expert (Phil Threlfall) and attended by George Clarke, London UndergroundTransport for London, Director of Engineering. The criteria being assessed have been shared with the project Sponsors.    

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





1. There have been little movement in the progress reported because despite good progress overall in the period, they did not achieve the very specific milestone that was set for Period 5 which means that the percentage increase is not reported. 

1. A new Master Operating Handover Schedule is due to be finalised in October and will include planned handover dates for the stations. 

Network Rail works for each stage



Stage 5:

1. [bookmark: _GoBack]The review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued. The need and options for [REDACTED] were discussed at the DfT portfolio board on 13 September and will now be raised at NR’s Executive committee on 2 October. 

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



· 54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, which is in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken to address this are summarised below, with the urgency being to re-start train delivery so that the remaining fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



· Old Oak Common Depot is in full operation. The fourth (of four) routes into and out of the depot has yet to be brought into use but theas this works rest relies on with  Network Rail’s  on their infrastructure. 

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line, increasing in the next month to eleven with the conclusion of train modification works. Availability continues to be very good on both routes. 

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  The most common event (though with small impact per incident and seen on the 7-car fleet only) remains the loss of the driver’s information screen requiring a manual reset. Bombardier have recently introduced a further operational control that reduces the incidence of this failure. MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 3,842 and 8,506 miles.



· The new Siemens signalling software for the Central Section, has been delivered to the Melton test-track and is being tested with the latest ‘R7.2.2.4’ train-software release. Initial testing w/c 10 September identified a number of issues and following rectification testing started on 12 September. To date 2 tests have been completed successfully out of 4 attempted. 



· The plan is to complete testing at Melton this week and make the associated changes and fixes to both the Siemens and Bombardier software such that this new configuration can be used in Crossrail Dynamic Testing, currently targeted for 22 October. The intention also remains to validate a derivative software version by 5 November (previously October) that can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail. This will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels.

 

· Dynamic Testing window number 11 took place on 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR) completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface with Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive activities and tests were achieved including:

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

    

· What was not achieved during the testing includes:

· The full transition from CBTC to ECTS/TPWS leaving the tunnel 

· The physical location of some track balises were not consistent with the on-board track database 

· The train still requires resetting when reversing and operating using the more complex modes.

Further software updates from both Siemens and BT (currently under test at Melton) are needed to address these issues and considerable further transition testing (but less disruptive to Network Rail) will be required. Subject to further Melton testing this week new train and wayside software is expected to be available for use in October. In addition Crossrail continues to look at enhancements to collaboration between the two contracts and at improving System Integration more widely.



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

		TBC



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

1.4 The readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction took place on 21 September. The review chaired by an independent expert (Phil Threlfall) concluded that against key rolling stock, signalling software and infrastructure installation and testing criteria, 5/2 dynamic testing would not commence on 22 October. 

1.5 No revised date for the start of the 5/2 dynamic testing was concluded at the meeting. CRL will consider the results of this first review and then put in place next steps. The recent independent schedule review concluded Autumn 2019 opening was compatible with starting 5/2 dynamic testing in January 2019, although the later that 5/2 dynamic testing starts the greater the risk to opening.  The CRL leadership team are now reviewing the outcome of the readiness review and are in the process of recasting the MOHS (the master schedule).  This will determine any further schedule pressures.  It is expected the review of the MOHS will take a further week.

1.6 Dynamic Testing window number 12 will take place on 29-30 September. Tests will include transition testing to the Great Eastern, testing at line speed in the tunnels and platform train interface testing. 

Systems integration

1.7 To strengthen Crossrail’s approach to systems integration, CRL convened a meeting involving CRL, TfL, RfL and MTR to agree a refreshed approach. Key actions were: 

· Commitment to a “one-team approach” (including key suppliers such as Bombardier Transportation (BT), Siemens and MTR) based on greater transparency and openness in dealings with one another

· Gain further commitment from Siemens particularly through provision of adequate resources, including nominated Germany-based leaders 

· Closer involvement of BT and increase the transparency of programme and status 

· Improve the focus of the systemwide contractor (‘ATC’) on facilitating testing and commissioning, as their current procedures are restrictive and efficiency in this area will be critical once full dynamic testing gets underway 

1.8 CRL has appointed a systems integration specialist who will review the current status of systems integration activity and put forward recommendations relating to revised structure, process, governance and accountabilities. It is likely that a substantial systems integration authority will be embedded within the existing Crossrail management structure.  The results of this review will be used to form the structure and personnel requirements for this new team.

Train production and testing 

1.9 A detailed update on progress with Bombardier is provided in Appendix A. 

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





1. The new MOHS is due to be finalised in October and will include planned handover dates for the stations. 

Network Rail works for each stage

Stage 5:

1. The review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued. The need and options for [REDACTED] were discussed at the DfT portfolio board on 13 September and will now be raised at NR’s Executive committee on 2 October. 

1. NR will commence enabling work at Ealing Broadway, West Ealing, Southall and Acton Main Line this month, and continue to plan to maximise use of the important Christmas works period.  

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

Date: 11 18 September 2018

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

1. IRN progress and static testing results for the key routeway commodities are circulated to CRL executives weekly as part of tracking readiness for the start of the 5 day testing/2 day construction approach. This was due to commence on 5 November but is now at risk despite commitments at very senior level by the joint venture contractor (Alstom TSO Costain).	Comment by SylviaMannah: Why is it at risk? 

Can it be escalated any higher in their organisation if we’re still seeing no change? 

1. Pressure continues to be applied on the joint venture contractor to complete their works in line with the schedule by improving productivity and planning. 

1. The results of the second part of the independent schedule review commissioned by the Sponsors will be presented at the Crossrail Sponsor Board on 20 September.

1. Static testing of all assets remains behind plan. Measured by the first testing stage of station IRNs, actual completion is at 40 per cent (vs plan 87 per cent). IRNs are being prioritised and actively monitored by all contracts but progress is slowed by both the resource challenges to produce the evidence documentation and the progress of the physical works. CRL is monitoring the process across all sites and has reviewed the latest IRN completion statistics for accuracy. Actual completion has reduced due to a reassessment of how completion was being measured. There was a slight difference in interpretation of what complete included but all metrics are reviewed on a regular basis for accuracy. 

Signalling implementation and testing

1.10 Dynamic Testing window number 11 took place on 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR) completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface with Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive activities and tests were achieved including:

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

1. Further software updates from both Siemens and BT (currently under test at Melton) are needed to address these issues and considerable further transition testing (but less disruptive to Network Rail) will be required. Subject to further Melton testing this week new train and wayside software is expected to be available for use in October. In addition Crossrail continues to look at enhancements to collaboration between the two contracts and at improving System Integration more widely.

1. Dynamic Testing window number 10 took place on 7 September. Testing was

1.  reduced to a single day due to Network Rail (NR) overhead line works for Crossrail not being completed in time to enable transition testing on the interface of the Great Western. 

CRL has now agreed a plan with NR and stakeholders to enable completion of a minimum work scope for overhead line works during two nights this week. This will enable transition testing at low speeds to take place during test window 11 commencing 15 September. The DfT are assisting with prioritising NR activity to ensure works are completed for transition testing on 15 September.

1. A readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction will take place on 21 September. This review will be chaired by an independent expert (Phil Threlfall) and attended by George Clarke, London Underground, Director of Engineering. The criteria being assessed have been shared with the project Sponsors. CRL will switch from the current approach to Dynamic Testing of 11 day construction/3 day testing to a 5 day testing/2 day construction approach on 5 November 2018 which is a key milestone to ensure we launch Stage 3 in autumn 2019.  This will enable a more concentrated focus on software testing and any bug fixing required.    

Train production and testing 

1. A detailed update on progress with Bombardier is provided in Appendix A. 

Stations

1. Overall station completion is measured periodically/every four weeks. The Period 4 5 results are:



		

		Actual (%)

		Planned (%)



		Paddington

		93.94

		93.94



		Bond Street

		91.92

		94.3



		Tottenham Court Road

		94.85

		98.0



		Farringdon

		98.0

		998.6



		Liverpool Street

		92.4

		93.74



		Whitechapel

		943.5

		98.2



		Woolwich

		95.56

		98.0





1. There have been little movement in the progress reported because despite good progress overall in the period, they didn’t achieve the very specific milestone that was set for period 5 which means that the percentage increase is not reported. 

1. A new Master Operating Handover Schedule is due to be finalised in October and will include planned handover dates for the stations. 



Network Rail works for each stage



Stage 5:

1. [bookmark: _GoBack]The review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued. The need and options for [REDACTED] were discussed at the DfT portfolio board on 13 September and will now be raised at NR’s Executive committee on 2 October.The figure has been amended from our previous estimate of [REDACTED] because we now have more knowledge about the tender estimated the NR has received. NR has shared an options report with Sponsors that outline the available options and the priorities for the works and will present to the DfT portfolio board on 13 September.   

1. NR will commence enabling work atare still planning to undertake enabling work at the Ealing Broadway, West Ealing, Southall and Acton Main Line western stations this month and to maximise use over of the important Christmas works period that will include the installation of the overbridges.  

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



· 54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, which is in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken to address this are summarised below with the urgency being to re-start train delivery so that the remaining fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



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
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From: Keane Kate
To: Mannah Sylvia
Cc: Doyne Stephanie
Subject: FW: TfL Restricted - Crossrail briefing
Date: 13 September 2018 14:21:53
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 130918 FINAL.docx

Here you go J

From: Doyne Stephanie 
Sent: 13 September 2018 10:32
To: Steer Tim; Erica Walker
Cc: Keane Kate; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Subject: TfL Restricted - Crossrail briefing
Hi both,
Please see attached this weeks briefing note on Crossrail.
Apologies in the delay in getting this over to you.
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

1. Dynamic Testing window number 10 took place on 7 September. Testing was reduced to a single day due to Network Rail (NR) overhead line works for Crossrail not being completed in time to enable transition testing on the interface of the Great Western. 

1. CRL has now agreed a plan with NR and stakeholders to enable completion of a minimum work scope for overhead line works during two nights this week. This will enable transition testing at low speeds to take place during test window 11 commencing 15 September. The DfT are assisting with prioritising NR activity to ensure works are completed for transition testing on 15 September.

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

1. The review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued. The figure has been amended from our previous estimate of [REDACTED] because we now have more knowledge about the tender estimated the NR has received. NR has shared an options report with Sponsors that outline the available options and the priorities for the works and will present to the DfT portfolio board on 13 September.   

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
Date: 20 September 2018 14:42:42
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 200918.docx

FYI.
Kind regards
Stephanie

From: Doyne Stephanie 
Sent: 20 September 2018 13:39
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

Date: 20 September 2018

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

1. A readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction will take place on 21 September. This review will be chaired by an independent expert (Phil Threlfall) and attended by George Clarke, Transport for London, Director of Engineering. The criteria being assessed have been shared with the project Sponsors.    

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



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, which is in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken to address this are summarised below, with the urgency being to re-start train delivery so that the remaining fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



· Old Oak Common Depot is in full operation. The fourth (of four) routes into and out of the depot has yet to be brought into use as this work relies on Network Rail’s infrastructure. 

 

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
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From: Howard Smith
To: Wild Mark (CEO Crossrail)
Cc: Mannah Sylvia
Subject: Fwd: Weekly note
Date: 15 September 2018 18:43:20
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 130918 FINAL.DOCX

ATT00001.htm

As promised 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Mannah Sylvia < tfl.gov.uk>
Date: 13 September 2018 at 15:39:31 BST
To: Lucy Findlay < crossrail.co.uk>, Howard Smith
 < crossrail.co.uk>
Cc: "Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development)"
 < tfl.gov.uk>, Price Amanda < tfl.gov.uk>,
 Tucker John < tfl.gov.uk>, Zavitz Richard
 < tfl.gov.uk>, Adams Simon < tfl.gov.uk>
Subject: Weekly note

Hi all,
Please find attached the final version of the weekly note. As always, thanks for
 your contributions. Can I please have the next draft by 2pm tomorrow.
Many thanks,
Sylvia
Sylvia Mannah

Transport for London | Senior Adviser to the Managing Director, London Underground
11B4 Palestra, 197 Blackfriars Road, London SE1 8NJ

Tel:  Ext:  Mob:  | E-mail: tfl.gov.uk
www.tfl.gov.uk

Click here to report this email as SPAM.

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed

http://www.tfl.gov.uk/
https://www.mailcontrol.com/sr/PyPlgSH7llbGX2PQPOmvUv46NwAC7+vkOryPF7Ut!Lu3PXwe8DkJiSoVsw5sqojJTPKrfr0OAQ4hR!AbTPK7tQ==
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
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EVERY JOURNEY MATTERS












From: Mannah Sylvia
To: Doyne Stephanie
Cc: Zavitz Richard
Subject: Mayor-BT Chairmans Weekly 240918
Date: 24 September 2018 13:08:26
Attachments: Mayor-BT Chairmans Weekly 240918.docx

Steph,
Attached is the current version with Lucy. I’ll keep you updated.
Thanks,
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

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line, increasing in the next month to eleven with the conclusion of train modification works. Availability dropped briefly at the start of the week but has since recovered. 	Comment by SylviaMannah: Do you still want this included considering TfL Rail finished at no1?

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 4,191 and 6,635 miles.	Comment by SylviaMannah: Different numbers to last week – should we start saying what dates they cover?



· The latest Siemens signalling software for the Central Section is being tested at Melton Test Track with the latest ‘R7.2.2.4’ train-software release. Testing started on 12 September. As it of 20 September, out of the 29 formal tests to be undertaken, 21 tests had been completed with 7 passed, 4 are under analysis and 10 failed. Some of the more complex tests have been scheduled early in the cycle and the necessary fixes are already being programmed into further releases by Siemens and Bombardier. This is scheduled for 16 November.    



· BT continues to undertake work to validate the software which can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail. This will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and will help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels. The target for making submissions to the necessary safety bodies is 5th November.

 



· The next Test Window is scheduled for 28/29 September and will include further testing of the transition between the CBTC signalling and national National Rrail (TPWS) signalling at Stratford, at the eastern end of the central tunnels.  

· Weekly meetings and daily calls continue between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL, to coordinate software releases, testing and bug fixing and respond to the results of Melton and central section dynamic testing. Bombardier and Siemens are also meeting bilaterally and TfL is holding escalation meetings with them where necessary. A plan to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s system integration capability and resource is now underway. 

 

· Development of Release 7.3 on-train software continues. This will be used for Heathrow services utilising the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system. Bombardier has submitted a programme which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service by 6 February 2019. TfL and BT continue to explore the potential to start driver training in advance of this date but this would also require an additional, specific, safety case and the immediate focus is on the 7.2 series software for dynamic testing in the central tunnels.    	Comment by SylviaMannah: Is this for Stage 2 phase 2?

 

· With a large amount of testing and a number of software releases, updates and derogations all requiring approval, software quality and assurance is the continuing focus. There was a meeting with BT senior management on 11 September at which their plans and initiatives to improve software quality were discussed. Good quality software reduces the burden on testing and assurance resources which are critical constraints on the ability to bring updated software into use.  




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

		Under review	Comment by SylviaMannah: Should we mention that new dates will be provided at the end of October? 



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

		TBCAutumn 2019



		Old Oak Common Depot

		 

		 



		Section A Brought into Use

		1 Mar

		Completed



		Section B1 Brought into Use

		11 Apr

		Completed



		Section C Brought into Use

		30 May 

		Completed













From: Howard Smith
To: Mannah Sylvia; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard; Findlay Lucy
Cc: Clarke Phil (ELLP); Wild Mark (CEO Crossrail); Findlay Lucy
Subject: Mayor"s Chairman"s Weekly
Date: 14 September 2018 17:01:49
Attachments: Mayor-BT Chairmans Weekly 170918.docx

Please find attached this weeks draft.
Few changes this week, I’ve incorporated the wording BT suggested last week into the first
 paragraph, I’ve updated on Melton and left a placeholder for the results of transition testing –
 to be completed on Monday.
The Milestone table needs a refresh but not this week.
Good weekend to all
Howard

Click here to report this email as SPAM.

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed

https://www.mailcontrol.com/sr/7PZjSsAbRIPGX2PQPOmvUrcjnBiwSJuVnEC+yYSgeTF0pew1HewoiRGD0mTse8zR2L7O0Qw5ciGzR1Lppn2zgQ==
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Elizabeth line - Bombardier Weekly Report 17 September 2018



Note No: 25



Key Activities and Issues



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, which is in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken to address this are summarised below, the urgency being to re-start train delivery such that the balance of the fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



· Old Oak Common Depot is in full operation. The fourth (of four) routes into and out of the depot has yet to be brought into use but the works rest with Network Rail on their infrastructure. 

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line, increasing in the next month to eleven with the conclusion of train modification works. Availability continues to be very good on both routes. 

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  The most common event (though with small impact per incident and seen on the 7-car fleet only) remains the loss of the driver’s information screen requiring a manual reset. Bombardier have recently introduced a further operational control that reduces the incidence of this failure. MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 3,842 and 8,506 miles.



· The new Siemens signalling software for the Central Section, has been delivered to the Melton test-track and is being tested with the latest ‘R7.2.2.4’ train-software release. Initial testing w/c 10 September identified a number of issues and following rectification testing started in earnest on 12 September. To date 2 tests have been completed successfully out of 4 attempted. 



· The plan is to complete testing at Melton this week and make the associated changes and fixes to both the Siemens and Bombardier software such that this new configuration can be used in Crossrail Dynamic Testing, currently targeted for 22 October. The intention also remains to validate a derivative software version by 5 November (previously October) that can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail. This will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels.

 

· Over the past weekend testing took place on the transition between the Crossrail Central Operating Section and the Network Rail tracks at Westbourne Park. This is also the transition between the CBTC and TWPS signalling systems. [Add words about success/failures on Monday]



· Weekly meetings continue between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL, to coordinate software releases, testing and bug fixing, and to take account of delays to central section infrastructure and changes to dynamic testing. Bombardier and Siemens are also meeting bilaterally and TfL is holding escalation meetings with them where necessary. A plan to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s system integration capability and resource is now underway. 

 

· Development of Release 7.3 on-train software continues. This will be used for Heathrow services utilising the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system. Bombardier has submitted a programme, currently under review by TfL, which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service by 6 February 2019. TfL and BT continue to explore the potential to start driver training in advance of this date but this would also require an additional, specific, safety case.   

 

· With a large amount of testing and a number of software releases, updates and derogations all requiring approval, software quality and assurance is the continuing focus. There was a meeting with BT senior management 11 September at which their plans and initiatives to improve software quality were discussed. Good quality software reduces the burden on testing and assurance resources which are critical constraints on the ability to bring updated software into use. Bombardier has introduced a number of additional signalling assurance engineers. 






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













From: O"Brien Jackie
To: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon; Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Doyne Stephanie; Keane Kate; external howard Smith; Wild Mark (MD)
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Date: 27 September 2018 17:35:09
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update_240918_for review MW AB (HS) (2).docx

image001.png

Hi Andy
Mark has added additional text (red) to section 2.3. with no other amendments
Regards
Jackie
Jackie O’Brien
PA to Mark Wild, Managing Director
London Underground
Palestra, Floor 11 B4
197 Blackfriars Road, London, SE1 8NJ
Phone:  Ext: 
Mobile: 

From: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs) 
Sent: 27 September 2018 16:22
To: Wild Mark (MD)
Cc: O'Brien Jackie; Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon; Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Doyne Stephanie; Keane Kate; external
 howard Smith
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Mark
Mike just asked me if you feel any changes need to be made to this note following the discussion earlier
 with the Mayor?
Andy

 | 
From: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs) 
Sent: 27 September 2018 11:02
To: Howard Smith; Wild Mark (MD)
Cc: O'Brien Jackie; Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon; Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Doyne Stephanie; Keane Kate
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Great - thanks Howard. I will run past Mike when he is back in the office later this morning.
Andy

 | 
From: Howard Smith [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 26 September 2018 19:00
To: Wild Mark (MD)
Cc: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); O'Brien Jackie; Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon; Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Doyne
 Stephanie; Keane Kate
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Colleagues,
Andy’s changes accepted, I’ve split 2.2 out and expanded to incorporate Mark’s comment, old 2.4 (now
 2.5) expanded too to reflect what I recall as one of the conclusions reached at the SI review.
Hopefully good to go – over to you Andy.
Hoping Sylvia’s back next week – good evening to all!
Howard
From: Wild Mark (MD) [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 26 September 2018 15:08
To: Howard Smith
Cc: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); O'Brien Jackie; Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon; Lucy Findlay; Mannah Sylvia; Doyne
 Stephanie; Keane Kate
Subject: Re: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Would be good I think

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
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On 26 Sep 2018, at 14:35, Howard Smith < crossrail.co.uk> wrote:

Andy, Mark,
Happy to revise before close today.
Howard

Sent from my iPhone

On 26 Sep 2018, at 13:18, Wild Mark (MD) < tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

Hi
Don’t forget the “autumn 19”
Is based on the independent rannikan report which suggested a dynamic test start date
 of 7 Jan 2019
CR team continue to push / believe that this pessimistic
But... the Phil threlfall review confirms that the more realistic trajectory is jan 19 start of
 DT and autumn for stage 3 opening. Ie confirms the rannikan assumptions
Although obviously no one is saying that getting to autumn 19 is going to be easy or
 without risk
Perhaps we should add a sentence to pull that out ?
M
Sent from my iPhone

On 26 Sep 2018, at 13:06, Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
 < tube.tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

Thanks, Jackie.
Howard, Richard,
A few minor tweaks from me, please - tracked on the attached.
That includes one sentence that I don’t understand, in para 2.4 -
 please can we expand that out?
And paras 2.2 and 2.3 read extremely negatively to me; can I just
 check that is intentional and that the outcome of Phil Threlfall’s
 review is as bad as it sounds? If I were David Bellamy my immediate
 question would be “does that mean the Autumn 2019 opening date
 is now at risk?”
If you could confirm on those couple of points then I will run past
 Mike before we send over to City Hall.
Many thanks,
Andy

 | 
From: O'Brien Jackie 
Sent: 25 September 2018 17:05
To: Zavitz Richard; Doyne Stephanie
Cc: Adams Simon; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs);
 Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Wild Mark (MD)
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Dear all
Mark’s amended version attached with additional text in section 2.5.
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
Sent: 25 September 2018 11:13
To: Doyne Stephanie; Wild Mark (MD)
Cc: Adams Simon; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs);
 Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia
Subject: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Hi Stephanie,
Find attached the latest version of the briefing note. Please let the group
 know if you or Mike have any comments.
Mark – Howard mentioned you may want to add some notes to the
 system integration section – please include as needed.
Thank you
Richard
_________________________________________________________________
Richard Zavitz
Principal Sponsor | Crossrail Joint Sponsor Team
Phone:  (auto  |
4th Floor North Wing, 55 Broadway, London SW1H 0DB |
 Email: tfl.gov.uk

Click here to report this email as SPAM.

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed

https://www.mailcontrol.com/sr/+mtnWveDMC!GX2PQPOmvUsgYVF5ojvByZEYeYz0aQd!z5raGsHt85KHgLj+4UTJym++wixmoXE8c1vNYau6exQ==


From: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
To: Wild Mark (MD)
Cc: O"Brien Jackie; Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon; Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Doyne Stephanie; Keane Kate; external howard Smith
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Date: 27 September 2018 16:21:49
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update_240918_for review MW AB (HS).docx

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

1.5 No revised date for the start of the 5/2 dynamic testing was concluded at the meeting. CRL will consider the results of this first review and then put in place next steps. The recent independent schedule review concluded Autumn 2019 opening was compatible with starting 5/2 dynamic testing in January 2019, although the later that 5/2 dynamic testing starts the greater the risk to opening.  

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
Cc: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); O"Brien Jackie; Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon; Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Doyne

 Stephanie; Keane Kate
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Date: 26 September 2018 19:00:05
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
Is based on the independent rannikan report which suggested a dynamic test
 start date of 7 Jan 2019
CR team continue to push / believe that this pessimistic
But... the Phil threlfall review confirms that the more realistic trajectory is jan
 19 start of DT and autumn for stage 3 opening. Ie confirms the rannikan
 assumptions
Although obviously no one is saying that getting to autumn 19 is going to be
 easy or without risk
Perhaps we should add a sentence to pull that out ?
M
Sent from my iPhone

On 26 Sep 2018, at 13:06, Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
 < tube.tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

Thanks, Jackie.
Howard, Richard,
A few minor tweaks from me, please - tracked on the
 attached.

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








That includes one sentence that I don’t understand, in para
 2.4 - please can we expand that out?
And paras 2.2 and 2.3 read extremely negatively to me; can I
 just check that is intentional and that the outcome of Phil
 Threlfall’s review is as bad as it sounds? If I were David
 Bellamy my immediate question would be “does that mean
 the Autumn 2019 opening date is now at risk?”
If you could confirm on those couple of points then I will run
 past Mike before we send over to City Hall.
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
Mark’s amended version attached with additional text in section
 2.5.
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
Find attached the latest version of the briefing note. Please let
 the group know if you or Mike have any comments.
Mark – Howard mentioned you may want to add some notes to
 the system integration section – please include as needed.
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
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Cc: Adams Simon; Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Wild Mark (MD); Doyne Stephanie; Keane Kate
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Date: 26 September 2018 13:06:42
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update_240918_for review MW AB.docx
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Howard, Richard,
A few minor tweaks from me, please - tracked on the attached.
That includes one sentence that I don’t understand, in para 2.4 - please can we expand
 that out?
And paras 2.2 and 2.3 read extremely negatively to me; can I just check that is intentional
 and that the outcome of Phil Threlfall’s review is as bad as it sounds? If I were David
 Bellamy my immediate question would be “does that mean the Autumn 2019 opening
 date is now at risk?”
If you could confirm on those couple of points then I will run past Mike before we send
 over to City Hall.
Many thanks,
Andy

 | 
From: O'Brien Jackie 
Sent: 25 September 2018 17:05
To: Zavitz Richard; Doyne Stephanie
Cc: Adams Simon; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Findlay Lucy; Mannah
 Sylvia; Wild Mark (MD)
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

· Improve ATCs testing and commissioning activity performance.	Comment by andrewbrown2: What does this mean?

1.7 CRL has appointed a systems integration specialist who will review the current status of systems integration activity and put forward recommendations relating to revised structure, process, governance and accountabilities. It is likely that a substantial systems integration authority will be embedded within the existing Crossrail management structure.  The results of this review will be used to form the structure and personnel requirements for this new team.

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

		16 NovUnder review



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
Cc: Adams Simon; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Wild

 Mark (MD)
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Date: 25 September 2018 17:05:25
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update_240918_for review MW.docx
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
To: Zavitz Richard; Doyne Stephanie; Wild Mark (CEO Crossrail)
Cc: Adams Simon; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Date: 25 September 2018 13:46:44

Stephanie,
Apologies, it’s been pointed out that in the rolling stock section (Appendix A) the Approval for Passenger
 Service Stage 3 date shouldn’t read 16 Nov but should, instead, read ‘under review’. If you can make the
 change before this goes forward I’d be grateful.
Howard

From: Zavitz Richard [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 25 September 2018 11:13
To: Doyne Stephanie; Wild Mark (MD)
Cc: Adams Simon; Howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Lucy Findlay; Mannah Sylvia
Subject: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Hi Stephanie,
Find attached the latest version of the briefing note. Please let the group know if you or Mike have any
 comments.
Mark – Howard mentioned you may want to add some notes to the system integration section – please
 include as needed.
Thank you
Richard
_________________________________________________________________
Richard Zavitz
Principal Sponsor | Crossrail Joint Sponsor Team
Phone:  (auto  |
4th Floor North Wing, 55 Broadway, London SW1H 0DB | Email: tfl.gov.uk

***********************************************************************************

The contents of this e-mail and any attached files are confidential. If you have received this email in
 error, please notify us immediately at postmaster@tfl.gov.uk and remove it from your system. If
 received in error, please do not use, disseminate, forward, print or copy this email or its content.
 Transport for London excludes any warranty and any liability as to the quality or accuracy of the
 contents of this email and any attached files.

Transport for London is a statutory corporation whose principal office is at 55 Broadway, London,
 SW1H 0DB. Further information about Transport for London’s subsidiary companies can be found
 on the following link: http://www.tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/

Although TfL have scanned this email (including attachments) for viruses, recipients are advised to
 carry out their own virus check before opening any attachments, as TfL accepts no liability for any
 loss, or damage which may be caused by viruses.

***********************************************************************************

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed

http://www.tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/
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From: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
To: O"Brien Jackie
Cc: Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon; Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Doyne Stephanie; Keane Kate; external howard Smith; Wild Mark (MD)
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Date: 27 September 2018 18:33:48
Attachments: image001.png

Agreed with Mike and now sent to City Hall. Thanks again everyone.
Andy

 | 
From: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs) 
Sent: 27 September 2018 17:37
To: O'Brien Jackie
Cc: Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon; Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Doyne Stephanie; Keane Kate; external howard Smith;
 Wild Mark (MD)
Subject: RE: [for review] Weekly Mayor note
Great - thanks Jackie
Andy

 | 
From: O'Brien Jackie 
Sent: 27 September 2018 17:35
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
To: Keane Kate
Cc: Steer Tim; Erica Walker; Doyne Stephanie
Subject: Re: Crossrail weekly note?
Date: 12 September 2018 20:10:36

Kate - Mike has signed off the copy of the weekly CRL note I had with me earlier - please
 can you send to Erica first thing tomorrow?

Thanks

Andy

On 12 Sep 2018, at 15:54, Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
 < tube.tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

I have a draft but I need to sign it off with Mike - and (as usual!) his attention
 has been elsewhere. I’m hoping to run it past him at about 6pm tonight.
 Sorry!

Andy

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed



From:
To: Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: DRAFT weekly note
Date: 11 September 2018 12:55:32

Grand, thanks very much Richard.
Andy

 | Crossrail Joint Sponsor Team, , Department for Transport
4/29 |  | 

From: Zavitz Richard [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 11 September 2018 12:54
To:  
Subject: RE: DRAFT weekly note
Thanks.
That’s fine – we’re here to help. Andy and I will also be attending.
Richard

From:  [mailto: dft.gov.uk] 
Sent: 11 September 2018 12:53
To: Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: DRAFT weekly note
Thanks Richard – I’ll take a look this afternoon.
I don’t think I’ll be able to attend the Period Review meeting this afternoon – I’ll pass on my comments to
 Pav. Hope that’s ok.
Thanks,

 | Crossrail Joint Sponsor Team, Department for Transport
4/29 |  | 

From: Zavitz Richard [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 11 September 2018 12:50
To:  < dft.gov.uk>
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
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The information in this email may be confidential or otherwise protected by law. If you received it in
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 it on to anybody else.
Incoming and outgoing e-mail messages are routinely monitored for compliance with our policy on
 the use of electronic communications and for other lawful purposes.
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From: Mannah Sylvia
To: "Howard Smith"; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard; Findlay Lucy
Cc: Clarke Phil (ELLP); Wild Mark (MD); Findlay Lucy; Keane Kate
Subject: RE: Mayor"s Chairman"s Weekly
Date: 17 September 2018 09:17:59
Attachments: Mayor-BT Chairmans Weekly 170918 SM.docx

Howard,
Thanks again for the note. Please find it attached with some very minor amends.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Howard Smith [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 14 September 2018 17:01
To: Mannah Sylvia; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard; Findlay Lucy
Cc: Clarke Phil (ELLP); Wild Mark (MD); Findlay Lucy
Subject: Mayor's Chairman's Weekly
Please find attached this weeks draft.
Few changes this week, I’ve incorporated the wording BT suggested last week into the
 first paragraph, I’ve updated on Melton and left a placeholder for the results of
 transition testing – to be completed on Monday.
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



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, which is in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken to address this are summarised below,  with the urgency being to re-start train delivery such so that the balance of theremaining fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



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
Cc: Clarke Phil (ELLP); Wild Mark (CEO Crossrail); Findlay Lucy; Keane Kate
Subject: RE: Mayor"s Chairman"s Weekly
Date: 17 September 2018 18:45:05
Attachments: Mayor-BT Chairmans Weekly 170918 (Final).docx

Sylvia and colleagues,
Final version incorporating your changes and the wording on last weekends transition testing that is identical
 to the main Mayor’s Report.
Howard

From: Mannah Sylvia [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 17 September 2018 09:18
To: Howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard; Lucy Findlay
Cc: Phil Clarke - TfL; Wild Mark (MD); Lucy Findlay; Keane Kate
Subject: RE: Mayor's Chairman's Weekly

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
Few changes this week, I’ve incorporated the wording BT suggested last week into the first paragraph, I’ve
 updated on Melton and left a placeholder for the results of transition testing – to be completed on Monday.
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

What was not achieved during the testing includes:

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
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Mayor"s weekly
Date: 17 September 2018 18:01:52

Sylvia,
Thanks, fine by me. Will incorporate the same wording into the BT Weekly
Howard

From: Mannah Sylvia [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 17 September 2018 17:36
To: Howard Smith; Lucy Findlay; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Mayor's weekly

Howard,
Thank you. I’ve tweaked it only slightly to below. Lucy, please find the note attached with one last
 comment – Andy’s team are concerned that we’re not addressing the point that although senior
 management from the JV have been involved, progress is still slow and we need to reassure City Hall
 that you guys are on the case.
Thanks,
Sylvia
1.1 Dynamic Testing window number 11 took place on 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR)

 completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the
 interface with Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive
 activities and tests were achieved including:

· Positive testing of the transition from TPWS to CBTC moving from the Great
 Western to the central tunnel section on Line 6

· For the first time, trains were fully prepared offsite ahead of time and
 successfully transited directly in from the Old Oak Common Depot for the
 testing window

· A new tool recording train data and CCTV from the driver’s cab was used,
 making analysis of results easier

· Outcomes were largely in line with pre-testing at the Crossrail Integration Facility
 (CIF) meaning future tests should be more predictable.

1.2 What was not achieved during the testing includes:
· The full transition from CBTC to ECTS/TPWS leaving the tunnel
· The physical location of some track balises were not consistent with the on-

board track database
· The train still requires resetting when reversing and operating using the more

 complex modes.

1.3 Further software updates from both Siemens and BT (currently under test at Melton) are
 needed to address these issues and considerable further transition testing (but less
 disruptive to Network Rail) will be required. Subject to further Melton testing this week
 new train and wayside software is expected to be available for use in October. In
 addition Crossrail continues to look at enhancements to collaboration between the two
 contracts and at improving System Integration more widely.

From: Howard Smith [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 17 September 2018 14:58
To: Findlay Lucy; Mannah Sylvia; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Mayor's weekly

Lucy, Sylvia, Andy,
My suggested wording on the weekend’s testing (Para 3.1). Quite a lengthy para so
 may want to break it down. If this is OK I’d propose to use the same wording for the BT

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed



 section (Mayor will get it twice, but BT Chairman once).
Howard

1.1 Dynamic Testing window number 11 took place on 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR)
 completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the
 interface with the Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive
 activities and tests were achieved (i) positive testing of the transition from TPWS to
 CBTC moving from the Great Western to the central tunnel section on Line 6 (ii) for the
 first time, trains were fully prepared offsite ahead of time and successfully transited
 directly in from the Old Oak Common Depot for the testing window (iii) a new tool
 recording train data and CCTV from the cab was used, making analysis of results
 easier (iv) outcomes were largely in line with pre-testing at the Crossrail Integration
 Facility (CIF) meaning future tests should be more predictable. More negatively (i) the
 full transition from CBTC to ECTS/TPWS leaving the tunnel wasn’t acheived (ii) the
 physical location of some track balises were not consistent with the on-board track
 database (iii) the train still requires resetting when reversing and operating using the
 more complex modes.
Further software updates from both Siemens and BT (currently under test at Melton)
 are needed to address these issues and considerable further transition testing (but
 less disruptive to Network Rail) will be required. Subject to further Melton testing this
 week new train and wayside software is expected to be available for use in October. In
 addition Crossrail continues to look at enhancements to collaboration between the two
 contracts and at improving System Integration more widely.

From: Lucy Findlay 
Sent: 17 September 2018 14:05
To: Mannah Sylvia; Howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Mayor's weekly
Thanks Sylvia. Comments in the attached. Regarding specific dates for the software availability from BT and
 Siemens I don’t have them to hand. Perhaps when Howard reviews that para he will be able to adapt my text
 accordingly.
Regarding 2.1 – the metrics showing linear percentage in that manner are no longer produced instead, as per the
 comment, the report that is now circulated focusses on the remaining IRNs and static testing for these
 commodities.
Lucy
Lucy Findlay | Chief of Staff
Crossrail | 25 Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London, E14 5LQ 
DD:  (Internal: Ext  M:  | CS28GM01 | crossrail.co.uk
MOVING LONDON FORWARD

From: Mannah Sylvia [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 17 September 2018 13:40
To: Lucy Findlay; Howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Mayor's weekly

Thanks Lucy, so will we not have an update for 2.1 this week?
Attached is the note with some comments from Andy’s team.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Lucy Findlay [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 17 September 2018 13:25
To: Mannah Sylvia; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Mayor's weekly
Sylvia – updated para 3.1 in the attached. Howard – please could you also review it.
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
Sent: 17 September 2018 09:35
To: Lucy Findlay; Howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Mayor's weekly

Lucy,
Thanks again for the note. Please find it attached with some amends and a few comments.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Lucy Findlay [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 14 September 2018 17:45
To: Mannah Sylvia; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Mayor's weekly
Hi Sylvia
Draft attached
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
Sent: 14 September 2018 17:09
To: Howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard; Lucy Findlay
Cc: Phil Clarke - TfL; Wild Mark (MD); Lucy Findlay
Subject: RE: Mayor's Chairman's Weekly

Thanks Howard.
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

https://www.mailcontrol.com/sr/MZbqvYs5QwJvpeaetUwhCQ==
http://www.tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/
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From: Mannah Sylvia
To: "Howard Smith"; Findlay Lucy; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Mayor"s weekly
Date: 17 September 2018 17:35:42
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 180918.docx

Howard,
Thank you. I’ve tweaked it only slightly to below. Lucy, please find the note attached with
 one last comment – Andy’s team are concerned that we’re not addressing the point that
 although senior management from the JV have been involved, progress is still slow and we
 need to reassure City Hall that you guys are on the case.
Thanks,
Sylvia
1.1 Dynamic Testing window number 11 took place on 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR)

 completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface
 with Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive activities and tests
 were achieved including:

· Positive testing of the transition from TPWS to CBTC moving from the Great Western to
 the central tunnel section on Line 6

· For the first time, trains were fully prepared offsite ahead of time and successfully
 transited directly in from the Old Oak Common Depot for the testing window

· A new tool recording train data and CCTV from the driver’s cab was used, making
 analysis of results easier

· Outcomes were largely in line with pre-testing at the Crossrail Integration Facility (CIF)
 meaning future tests should be more predictable.

1.2 What was not achieved during the testing includes:
· The full transition from CBTC to ECTS/TPWS leaving the tunnel
· The physical location of some track balises were not consistent with the on-board track

 database
· The train still requires resetting when reversing and operating using the more complex

 modes.

1.3 Further software updates from both Siemens and BT (currently under test at Melton) are needed
 to address these issues and considerable further transition testing (but less disruptive to
 Network Rail) will be required. Subject to further Melton testing this week new train and
 wayside software is expected to be available for use in October. In addition Crossrail continues
 to look at enhancements to collaboration between the two contracts and at improving System
 Integration more widely.

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
My suggested wording on the weekend’s testing (Para 3.1). Quite a lengthy para so may want to
 break it down. If this is OK I’d propose to use the same wording for the BT section (Mayor will
 get it twice, but BT Chairman once).
Howard

1.1 Dynamic Testing window number 11 took place on 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR)
 completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface
 with the Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive activities and tests
 were achieved (i) positive testing of the transition from TPWS to CBTC moving from the Great
 Western to the central tunnel section on Line 6 (ii) for the first time, trains were fully prepared
 offsite ahead of time and successfully transited directly in from the Old Oak Common Depot
 for the testing window (iii) a new tool recording train data and CCTV from the cab was used,
 making analysis of results easier (iv) outcomes were largely in line with pre-testing at the
 Crossrail Integration Facility (CIF) meaning future tests should be more predictable. More

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








 negatively (i) the full transition from CBTC to ECTS/TPWS leaving the tunnel wasn’t acheived (ii)
 the physical location of some track balises were not consistent with the on-board track
 database (iii) the train still requires resetting when reversing and operating using the more
 complex modes.
Further software updates from both Siemens and BT (currently under test at Melton) are needed
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
 paragraph, I’ve updated on Melton and left a placeholder for the results of transition testing – to be
 completed on Monday.
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
Date: 17 September 2018 14:05:20
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v4.docx

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

PARA 2.2 STATES PRODUCTIVITY IS NOT GOOD ENOUGH HENCE WHY IT’S AT RISK

Also further down it says that we will be having a review on the 21 September - is this because of the delay to starting this change in timings?
NO THE REVIEW ON 21 SEPTEMBER IS TO REVIEW READINESS AGAINST ALL THE ENTRY CRITERIA FOR 5/2 DT STARTING i.e. WILL WE BE READY AGAINST A VERY LONG LIST OF ITEMS NOT JUST THESE COMMODITIES. 

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

1. Dynamic Testing window number 10 11 took place on 7 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR) completed the required overhead line installation which enabled  transition testing of the interface with the Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive activities and tests were achieved including Ttesting of the transition from TPWS and CBTC inbound from the Great Western route into the central tunnel section on Line 6. wasFor the first time, trains were fully prepared offsite ahead of time and successfully transited directly onto the railway from the Old Oak Common Depot for the testing window. However, the planned software upgrades from BT/Siemens (train) and Siemens (lineside equipment) are both needed, as well as enhanced collaboration between the two contracts, to ensure that future testing is even more productive and tests can be categorised as complete.

1.  reduced to a single day due to Network Rail (NR) overhead line works for Crossrail not being completed in time to enable transition testing on the interface of the Great Western. 

CRL has now agreed a plan with NR and stakeholders to enable completion of a minimum work scope for overhead line works during two nights this week. This will enable transition testing at low speeds to take place during test window 11 commencing 15 September. The DfT are assisting with prioritising NR activity to ensure works are completed for transition testing on 15 September.

1. A readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction will take place on 21 September. This review will be chaired by an independent expert and attended by George Clarke, London Underground, Director of Engineering. The criteria being assessed have been shared with the project Sponsors. CRL will switch from the current approach to Dynamic Testing of 11 day construction/3 day testing to a 5 day testing/2 day construction approach on 5 November 2018 which is a key milestone to ensure we launch Stage 3 in autumn 2019.  This will enable a more concentrated focus on software testing and any bug fixing required.    

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

		95.56	Comment by SylviaMannah: There is barely any change since period 4 - why is that? BECAUSE DESPITE MAKING GOOD PROGRESS IN THE PERIOD, THEY DIDN'T ACHIEVE THE VERY SPECIFIC MILESTONES THEY SET FOR PERIOD 5. IF THEY DON'T ACHIEVE THOSE MILESTONES THEY DON'T REPORT A PERCENTAGE INCREASE. NEW MILESTONES WILL BE ESTABLISHED WHEN THE REVISED MOHS IS PUT IN PLACE

		98.0





Network Rail works for each stage



Stage 5:

1. The review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued. The need and options for [REDACTED] were discussed at the DfT portfolio board on 13 September and will now be raised at NR’s Executive committee on 2 October.The figure has been amended from our previous estimate of [REDACTED] because we now have more knowledge about the tender estimated the NR has received. NR has shared an options report with Sponsors that outline the available options and the priorities for the works and will present to the DfT portfolio board on 13 September.   

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
To: Findlay Lucy; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Mayor"s weekly
Date: 17 September 2018 13:40:20
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

1. IRN progress and static testing results for the key routeway commodities are circulated to CRL executives weekly as part of tracking readiness for the start of the 5 day testing/2 day construction approach. This was due to commence on 5 November but is now at risk despite commitments at very senior level by the joint venture contractor (Alstom TSO Costain).	Comment by SylviaMannah: Why is it at risk? Also further down it says that we will be having a review on the 21 September - is this because of the delay to starting this change in timings?

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

		95.56	Comment by SylviaMannah: There is barely any change since period 4 - why is that?

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
Date: 17 September 2018 13:24:59
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v3.docx

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

1. Pressure continues to be applied on the joint venture contractor to complete their works in line with the schedule by improving productivity and planning. 	Comment by SylviaMannah: Who are the contractors and can pressure be applied to increase productivity. 

Is this linked to resourcing and should we include something about the fact that the people who have apparently been poached by Tottenham FC is not having an impact? THERE IS NO LINK AND WE HAVE PUBLICALLY REBUTTED THIS STORY and Mace has unofficially told us they are demobilising people.

1. The results of the second part of the independent schedule review commissioned by the Sponsors will be presented at the Joint Sponsor Board on 20 September.	Comment by Lucy Findlay: Officially it is the Crossrail Sponsor Board

1. Static testing of all assets remains behind plan. Measured by the first testing stage of station IRNs, actual completion is at 40 per cent (vs plan 87 per cent). IRNs are being prioritised and actively monitored by all contracts but progress is slowed by both the resource challenges to produce the evidence documentation and the progress of the physical works. CRL is monitoring the process across all sites and has reviewed the latest IRN completion statistics for accuracy. Actual completion has reduced due to a reassessment of how completion was being measured. There was a slight difference in interpretation of what complete included but all metrics are reviewed on a regular basis for accuracy. 

Signalling implementation and testing

1. Dynamic Testing window number 10 11 took place on 7 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR) completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface with the Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive activities and tests were achieved including Ttesting of the transition from TPWS and CBTC inbound from the Great Western to the central tunnel section on Line 6 and wasfor the first time, trains were fully prepared offsite ahead of time and successfully transited directly in from the Old Oak Common Depot for the testing window. However, the planned software upgrades from BT/Siemens (train) and Siemens (lineside equipment) are both needed, as well as enhanced collaboration between the two contracts, to ensure that future testing is even more productive and tests can be categorised as complete.

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



		Woolwich	Comment by SylviaMannah: Should we include the planned completion dates and the expected completion dates ONCE WE HAVE FINALISED THE REVISED MOHS (DUE MID-OCT) INCLUDING THE TOSD, HANDOVER DATES WE CAN START REPORTING ON THESE

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
Date: 17 September 2018 10:26:33
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v2.docx

Thanks Sylvia please see attached.
I can provide the summary of dynamic testing undertaken after our excom at 11 this morning.
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

1. Dynamic Testing window number 10 11 took place on 7 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR) completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface with the Great Western. Testing was reduced to a single day due to Network Rail (NR) overhead line works for Crossrail not being completed in time to enable transition testing on the interface of the Great Western. 	Comment by Lucy Findlay: Need to find out on Monday how things went

1. CRL has now agreed a plan with NR and stakeholders to enable completion of a minimum work scope for overhead line works during two nights this week. This will enable transition testing at low speeds to take place during test window 11 commencing 15 September. The DfT are assisting with prioritising NR activity to ensure works are completed for transition testing on 15 September.xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

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

1. Critical programme metrics for routeway construction are tracked weekly and actively monitored by Crossrail Ltd (CRL). Progress against the plan can vary week by week as the contractor coordinates and prioritises its activity:	Comment by Lucy Findlay: Weekly progress figures not currently available

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

1. IRN progress and static testing results for the key routeway commodities are circulated to CRL executives weekly as part of tracking readiness for the start of the 5 day testing/2 day construction approach. This was due to commence on 5 November but is now at risk.

1. Pressure continues to be applied on the joint venture contractor to complete their works in line with the schedule. 	Comment by SylviaMannah: Who are the contractors and can pressure be applied to increase productivity. 

Is this linked to resourcing and should we include something about the fact that the people who have apparently been poached by Tottenham FC is not having an impact?

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



		Woolwich	Comment by SylviaMannah: Should we include the planned completion dates and the expected completion dates

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

1. NR will commence enabling work atare still planning to undertake enabling work at the Ealing Broadway, West Ealing, Southall and Acton Main Line western stations soon and to maximise use over of the important Christmas works period that will include the installation of the overbridges.  	Comment by SylviaMannah: Can we say whether this is this month or next month?

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

1. At current levels of productivity the 22 October 2018 completion date and the risk date of 5 November for routeway construction are unlikely to be achieved. Installation is forecast complete but testing is indicating slippage to later in November.

1. IRN progress and static testing results for the key routeway commodities are circulated to CRL executives weekly as part of tracking readiness for the start of the 5 day testing/2 day construction approach. This was due to commence on 5 November but is now at risk.

1. Pressure continues to be applied on the joint venture contractor to complete their works in line with the schedule. 

1. The results of the second part of the independent schedule review commissioned by Sponsors will be presented at the Sponsor Board on 20 September.

1. Static testing of all assets remains behind plan. Measured by the first testing stage of station IRNs, actual completion is at 40 per cent (vs plan 87 per cent). IRNs are being prioritised and actively monitored by all contracts but progress is slowed by both the resource challenges to produce the evidence documentation and the progress of the physical works. CRL is monitoring the process across all sites and has reviewed the latest IRN completion statistics for accuracy. Actual completion has reduced due to a reassessment of how completion was being measured. There was a slight difference in interpretation of what complete included but all metrics are reviewed on a regular basis for accuracy. 

Signalling implementation and testing

1. Dynamic Testing window number 10 11 took place on 7 15-16 September. Network Rail completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface with the Great Western. Testing was reduced to a single day due to Network Rail (NR) overhead line works for Crossrail not being completed in time to enable transition testing on the interface of the Great Western. 	Comment by Lucy Findlay: Need to find out on Monday how things went

1. CRL has now agreed a plan with NR and stakeholders to enable completion of a minimum work scope for overhead line works during two nights this week. This will enable transition testing at low speeds to take place during test window 11 commencing 15 September. The DfT are assisting with prioritising NR activity to ensure works are completed for transition testing on 15 September.xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

1. A readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction will take place on 21 September. This review will be chaired by an independent expert and attended by George Clarke, London Underground, Director of Engineering. The criteria being assessed have been shared with project Sponsors. CRL will switch from the current approach to Dynamic Testing of 11 day construction/3 day testing to a 5 day testing/2 day construction approach on 5 November 2018 which is a key milestone to ensure we launch Stage 3 in autumn 2019.  This will enable a more concentrated focus on software testing and any bug fixing required.    

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

1. NR will commence enabling work atare still planning to undertake enabling work at the Ealing Broadway, West Ealing, Southall and Acton Main Line western stations soon and maximise use over of the important Christmas works period that will include the installation of the overbridges.  

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
To: Findlay Lucy
Cc: external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon
Subject: Re: Mayor"s weekly
Date: 17 September 2018 18:14:09

Ok - I’ll just say that we have strong commitment from them to deliver by the 22 October.

Sent from my iPhone

On 17 Sep 2018, at 18:00, Lucy Findlay < crossrail.co.uk> wrote:

 
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
Sent: 17 September 2018 17:58
To: Lucy Findlay
Cc: Howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon
Subject: Re: Mayor's weekly
Thanks Lucy. I’ll include that and hopefully it will be enough. Thanks again.
Sylvia

Sent from my iPhone

On 17 Sep 2018, at 17:55, Lucy Findlay < crossrail.co.uk> wrote:

The commitment we have is at Executive Committee level for Alstom who has accountability
 for Europe. We have not escalated to Alstom global Board level.
We met ATC CEOs last week to reinforce our requirements.
They are  to achieve 22/10
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
 although senior management from the JV have been involved, progress is still slow and
 we need to reassure City Hall that you guys are on the case.
Thanks,
Sylvia
<!--[if !supportLists]-->1.1 <!--[endif]-->Dynamic Testing window number 11 took

 place on 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR) completed the required
 overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface with
 Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive activities
 and tests were achieved including:

<!--[if !supportLists]-->· <!--[endif]-->Positive testing of the transition
 from TPWS to CBTC moving from the Great Western to the
 central tunnel section on Line 6

<!--[if !supportLists]-->· <!--[endif]-->For the first time, trains were fully
 prepared offsite ahead of time and successfully transited directly in
 from the Old Oak Common Depot for the testing window

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed



<!--[if !supportLists]-->· <!--[endif]-->A new tool recording train data
 and CCTV from the driver’s cab was used, making analysis of
 results easier

<!--[if !supportLists]-->· <!--[endif]-->Outcomes were largely in line with
 pre-testing at the Crossrail Integration Facility (CIF) meaning
 future tests should be more predictable.

<!--[if !supportLists]-->1.2 <!--[endif]-->What was not achieved during the testing
 includes:

<!--[if !supportLists]-->· <!--[endif]-->The full transition from CBTC to
 ECTS/TPWS leaving the tunnel

<!--[if !supportLists]-->· <!--[endif]-->The physical location of some
 track balises were not consistent with the on-board track database

<!--[if !supportLists]-->· <!--[endif]-->The train still requires resetting
 when reversing and operating using the more complex modes.

<!--[if !supportLists]-->1.3 <!--[endif]-->Further software updates from both
 Siemens and BT (currently under test at Melton) are needed to address
 these issues and considerable further transition testing (but less disruptive
 to Network Rail) will be required. Subject to further Melton testing this week
 new train and wayside software is expected to be available for use in
 October. In addition Crossrail continues to look at enhancements to
 collaboration between the two contracts and at improving System
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
My suggested wording on the weekend’s testing (Para 3.1). Quite a lengthy
 para so may want to break it down. If this is OK I’d propose to use the
 same wording for the BT section (Mayor will get it twice, but BT Chairman
 once).
Howard

<!--[if !supportLists]-->1.1 <!--[endif]-->Dynamic Testing window number 11 took
 place on 15-16 September. Network Rail (NR) completed the required
 overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface with the
 Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive activities
 and tests were achieved (i) positive testing of the transition from TPWS to
 CBTC moving from the Great Western to the central tunnel section on Line
 6 (ii) for the first time, trains were fully prepared offsite ahead of time and
 successfully transited directly in from the Old Oak Common Depot for the
 testing window (iii) a new tool recording train data and CCTV from the cab
 was used, making analysis of results easier (iv) outcomes were largely in
 line with pre-testing at the Crossrail Integration Facility (CIF) meaning
 future tests should be more predictable. More negatively (i) the full
 transition from CBTC to ECTS/TPWS leaving the tunnel wasn’t acheived
 (ii) the physical location of some track balises were not consistent with the
 on-board track database (iii) the train still requires resetting when reversing
 and operating using the more complex modes.
Further software updates from both Siemens and BT (currently under test at
 Melton) are needed to address these issues and considerable further
 transition testing (but less disruptive to Network Rail) will be required.
 Subject to further Melton testing this week new train and wayside software
 is expected to be available for use in October. In addition Crossrail
 continues to look at enhancements to collaboration between the two
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
Thanks Sylvia. Comments in the attached. Regarding specific dates for the software availability from

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed



 BT and Siemens I don’t have them to hand. Perhaps when Howard reviews that para he will be
 able to adapt my text accordingly.
Regarding 2.1 – the metrics showing linear percentage in that manner are no longer produced
 instead, as per the comment, the report that is now circulated focusses on the remaining IRNs and
 static testing for these commodities.
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
Thanks again for the note. Please find it attached with some amends and a few
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

The contents of this e-mail and any attached files are confidential. If you have received
 this email in error, please notify us immediately at postmaster@tfl.gov.uk and remove it
 from your system. If received in error, please do not use, disseminate, forward, print or
 copy this email or its content. Transport for London excludes any warranty and any
 liability as to the quality or accuracy of the contents of this email and any attached files.

Transport for London is a statutory corporation whose principal office is at 55 Broadway,
 London, SW1H 0DB. Further information about Transport for London’s subsidiary
 companies can be found on the following link: http://www.tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/

Although TfL have scanned this email (including attachments) for viruses, recipients are
 advised to carry out their own virus check before opening any attachments, as TfL
 accepts no liability for any loss, or damage which may be caused by viruses.

***********************************************************************************

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed

https://www.mailcontrol.com/sr/MZbqvYs5QwJvpeaetUwhCQ==
mailto:postmaster@tfl.gov.uk
http://www.tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/


From: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
To: Erica Walker
Cc: Doyne Stephanie; Steer Tim; Keane Kate
Subject: RE: TfL Restricted - Crossrail briefing
Date: 27 September 2018 18:33:34
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update_240918_for review MW AB (HS) (2).docx

Hi Erica
Sorry for the delay - please find this week’s briefing attached.
Andy

 | 
From: Keane Kate 
Sent: 27 September 2018 15:20
To: Erica Walker; Doyne Stephanie; Steer Tim
Cc: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Subject: RE: TfL Restricted - Crossrail briefing
Hi Erica
Andy is hoping to run it by Mike this afternoon – as soon as he is ok with it, we will send it across
 to you.
Sorry for the delay.
Kate

From: Erica Walker [mailto: london.gov.uk] 
Sent: 27 September 2018 14:39
To: Doyne Stephanie; Steer Tim
Cc: Keane Kate; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Subject: RE: TfL Restricted - Crossrail briefing
Hi – just following up to see if we will get this shortly.
Many thanks
Erica

From: Doyne Stephanie 
Sent: 20 September 2018 13:39
To: Tim Steer ; Erica Walker 
Cc: Keane Kate ; Andrew J. Brown 
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
#LondonIsOpen

GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY NOTICE: 
The information in this email may contain confidential or privileged materials. For more information
 see https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/email-notice/

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
Subject: RE: Weekly Mayor Update 110918
Date: 11 September 2018 14:50:48
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 110918 v1.1.docx

Only minor change to formatting to help 3.1 to read better.
Kind regards
Stephanie

From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 11 September 2018 14:02
To: Doyne Stephanie
Subject: Weekly Mayor Update 110918
The note for review.
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

1. CRL has now agreed a plan with NR and stakeholders to enable completion of a minimum work scope for overhead line works during two nights this week. This will to enable transition testing at low speeds to take place during test window 11 commencing 15 September. The DfT is are assisting with prioritising NR activity to ensure works are completed for transition testing on 15 September.

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
Date: 11 September 2018 14:30:42

3.1
From: Doyne Stephanie 
Sent: 11 September 2018 14:26
To: Mannah Sylvia
Subject: RE: Weekly Mayor Update 110918
Hiya,
What’s the difference to this note and the note you sent through earlier?
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
Cc: Keane Kate
Subject: RE: Weekly Mayor Update 110918
Date: 11 September 2018 14:52:32
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 110918 v1.1.docx

image001.png

Please see updated note (the only change is to point 3.1 – unfortunately LU have not used track
 changes).
Kind regards
Stephanie

From: Doyne Stephanie 
Sent: 11 September 2018 12:11
To: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Keane Kate
Subject: Weekly Mayor Update 110918
Hi Andy,
Please see attached the most current note for the weekly update.
Let me know if you have any comments.
Kind Regards
Stephanie
Stephanie Doyne
Corporate Affairs Manager
Customers, Communication and Technology
Palestra (11th Floor, 11Y8) | 197 Blackfriars Road | London SE1 8NJ
Phone:  | Auto:  | Mobile: 

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
Subject: RE: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v2
Date: 17 September 2018 11:54:45
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v3.docx

Only a few comments – especially disappointed at the lack of progress at stations and the lack of
 reasoning behind it.
Kind regards
Stephanie

From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 17 September 2018 11:22
To: Doyne Stephanie
Subject: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v2
Current version. Lucy will update it shortly. Let me know if you have any
 comments asap.

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



			Comment by stephaniedoyne: There is barely any change since period 4 - why is that?

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
Subject: RE: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v4.docx
Date: 18 September 2018 09:17:14
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 180918.docx

Steph,
Attached is the updated note which hopefully now addresses the points you made
 yesterday.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Doyne Stephanie 
Sent: 17 September 2018 14:58
To: Mannah Sylvia
Cc: Keane Kate
Subject: RE: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v4.docx
I understand – I’m just worried with all the focus on Crossrail at the moment that these notes
 aren’t particularly helpful….
Kind regards
Stephanie

From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 17 September 2018 14:53
To: Doyne Stephanie
Cc: Keane Kate
Subject: Re: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v4.docx
Steph,
I get your point and frustration but I think part of Lucy’s challenge is around the right info
 being available. I’ll pick this back up and get back to you.
Thanks,
Sylvia

Sent from my iPhone

On 17 Sep 2018, at 14:45, Doyne Stephanie < tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

Is there a particular reason that she writes in caps? 

As for the explanation on my first point it isn’t good enough. Why has the
 productivity not been good enough despite it being highlighted to senior
 management, not to mention recent discussions at such a high level? What
 steps are being taken to manage this? Why is this information not included in
 the note? We can't simply say there are risks every week and have no real
 evidence of what is being done to manage these. I also don’t understand how
 the figures provided for stations can only be updated when there is a new
 MOHS (which was only explained when I asked why the numbers hadn’t
 changed). but this is not explained in the note i.e. when the new MOHS will
 come in and when we can expect to see a change in the figures 

Lucy and her team need to understand that when Mike reviews each note, the
 main thing he will mention is that we repeat the same information each week. 

Sorry if this sounds like I am having a go at you but this back and forth each
 week causes delays to the note being sent across and with a potential weekly
 call about to be scheduled, I'm concerned at the lack of care being taken when

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

1. IRN progress and static testing results for the key routeway commodities are circulated to CRL executives weekly as part of tracking readiness for the start of the 5 day testing/2 day construction approach. This was due to commence on 5 November but is now at risk despite commitments at very senior level by the joint venture (JV) contractor (Alstom TSO Costain) including Alstom’s European Executive Committee level. CRL met with the JV’s CEOs last week to reinforce the requirements needed and they gave a strong commitment to deliver the requirements by 22 October. Pressure continues to be applied on the joint venture contractor to complete their works in line with the schedule by improving productivity and planning. 

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

1. A readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction will take place on 21 September. This review will be chaired by an independent expert (Phil Threlfall) and attended by George Clarke, London Underground, Director of Engineering. The criteria being assessed have been shared with the project Sponsors.    

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
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 providing information to Mike and the Mayor's office.

Kind regards
Stephanie

-----Original Message-----
From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 17 September 2018 14:20
To: Doyne Stephanie
Subject: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v4.docx

I’m in a 2 hour meeting for now so for speed, please find the document
 attached.

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed



From: Doyne Stephanie
To: Mannah Sylvia
Cc: Keane Kate
Subject: RE: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v4.docx
Date: 18 September 2018 10:32:45

Hi Sylvia,
This is much better - thanks.
I’m going to try and get Mike to look it asap and will let you know when we send it across to City
 Hall.
Kind regards
Stephanie

From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 18 September 2018 09:17
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
Subject: RE: Weekly Mayor Update xx0918
Date: 10 September 2018 14:52:03
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 100918 SD Comments.docx

Hi Sylvia,
Agree with all of your comments and have added a few of my own. I’m not sure why the figures
 keep changing surely it should just go up each week against the target or stay the same?
Kind regards
Stephanie

From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 10 September 2018 14:38
To: Doyne Stephanie
Subject: Weekly Mayor Update xx0918
With my comments.

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

1. Critical programme metrics for routeway construction are tracked weekly and actively monitored by CRL. Progress against the plan can vary week by week as the contractor coordinates and prioritises its activity:

· Cabling: 96 per cent complete (vs forecast 97 98 per cent complete): 4,9252,442m completed in week 	Comment by stephaniedoyne: Last week it said 96% against a target of 97% complete - can we just check that 98% is correct?	Comment by SylviaMannah: Why is there no change to this percentage? 

· Tunnel Walkways: 88 91 per cent complete (vs forecast 86 90 per cent complete):  844m 1,244m completed in week

· Firemain: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 89 per cent complete): Two anchors, five hydrants and 3 valves installed

· Drainage: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 92 95 per cent complete): all stations shafts and portals tie-in inspections completed	Comment by stephaniedoyne: Last week it said 89% against a target of 92% complete - can we just check that 95% is correct?	Comment by SylviaMannah: Why is there no change to this percentage?

· Permanent tunnel ventilation: 96 97 per cent complete (vs forecast 97 98 per cent complete): Final completion is pending the Installation Release Notes (IRN) sign off, snagging items and resolution of constraints around Bond Street West

1. Availability of resources for testing of communication equipment continues to constrain testing activities. Although testing activities are not on the critical path for Dynamic Testing, the completion of testing is required for the start of Trial Operations.  A revised schedule has been prepared by CRL that will require fewer resources, though still more than presently available.  CRL is investigating how to source more trained resources with Siemens.  

1. Static testing of all assets remainsis behind plan. Measured by the first testing stage of station IRN’s, actual completion is at 45 40 per cent (vs plan 79 87 per cent). IRNs are being prioritised and actively monitored by all contracts but progress is slowed by both the resource challenges to produce the evidence documentation and the progress of the physical works.  CRL is monitoring the process across all sites and is reviewing the latest IRN completion statistics for accuracy.   Actual completion has reduced due to a reassessment of how completion was being measured.	Comment by SylviaMannah: Can anything be done to speed this up?	Comment by stephaniedoyne: Last week this was 45% vs 79% - can you check this is correct?	Comment by SylviaMannah: How can we only realise now that this was being measured wrongly. Is there a review into all the other measurements to ensure they’re reflective.

Signalling implementation and testing

1. Dynamic Testing window number 9 10 took place on 7 September. Testing was reduced to a single day due to Network Rail (NR) works not being complete to enable transition testing on the interface of the Great Western or further transition testing on the Great Eastern. this weekend between Friday 24 August and Tuesday 28 August.  Testing included:  

1. Transition Testing on the interface to the Great Eastern (primarily Route Accessibility Testing)

1. Line speed increase tests between Liverpool Street and Canary Wharf and between Whitechapel and Pudding Mill Lane

1. Route Accessibility Testing between Farringdon and Paddington

1. Electronic beacon / transponder testing in Westbourne Park

1. Bombardier Testing of Transparent Link between signalling systems and Communications and Control Systems

1. Radio system testing in the vicinity of Pudding Mill Lane

1. Electromagnetic Compatibility (EMC) testing at Custom House and Plumstead

1. DfT is assisting with prioritising NR activity to ensure works are completed for transition testing on 15 September.

1. After some difficulties initially with the stability of the trains, all planned tests were undertaken during Dynamic Testing window number 9.  Following route accessibility testing, line speed has now been achieved throughout the Central Operating Section east of Paddington. Planned transparent link, radio and EMC testing was completed.  Transition tests were undertaken on the interface with the Great Eastern and results are being analysed.  

1. The next test window is scheduled for 8 and 9 September to complete any remaining tests on the Great Eastern transition.

1. CRL will switch from the current approach to Dynamic Testing of 11 day construction/3 day testing to a 5 day testing/2 day construction approach on 5 November 2018 which is the new milestone to ensure we launch Stage 3 in autumn 2019., instead of the previous estimate of 22 October 2018.  This will allow enable a more concentrated focus on software testing and any bug fixing required.    

Train production and testing 

1. A detailed update on progress with Bombardier is provided in Appendix A. 



Stations

Progress on station escalators is between 92 per cent and 98 per cent complete across the programme.  Fit-out of escalator equipment starting at Bond Street.  

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

1. TA follow-up meeting was held on Monday 20 August to continue the review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED]for the western station enhancement works has continued. NR  Network Rail is preparing anhas shared an options report to share with Sponsors that will outline the available options and the priorities for the works and will present to the DfT portfolio board on 13 September.   

1. NR are still planning to undertake enabling work at the western stations over the important Christmas works period that will include the installation of the overbridges.  

1. Local authorities are likely to challenge vigorously any reductions in scope or delays to delivery. This will add to schedule pressure which will have already been extended by the potential need to reprice the works.	Comment by SylviaMannah: Is this still valid following the delay announcement?

Approvals for each stage

1. The overall approvals for each stage have not changed since the last weekly update but will be updated when the detailed delivery schedule is finalised..

Appendix

1. Appendix A: Joint TfL and Bombardier Weekly Report 




Appendix A: Joint TfL and Bombardier Weekly Report 







Elizabeth line - Bombardier Weekly Report 28 August 2018



Note No: 23



Key Activities and Issues



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, in line with the plan. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The initiatives are summarised below, and there is an urgency such that train delivery can be re-established to complete acceptance of the balance of the fleet by summer 2019, as originally scheduled and at the planned steady and sustainable rate.  



· Old Oak Common Depot is in full operation. The fourth (of four) routes into and out of the depot has yet to be brought into use but the works rest with Network Rail on their infrastructure. 

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line, increasing in the next month to eleven with the conclusion of train modification works. Availability continues to be excellent on both routes. 

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 5,000 miles by end of Period 5 (18 August) and 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  The most common event  (though with small impact per incident and seen on the 7-car fleet only) is still the loss of the driver’s information screen requiring a manual reset,  but the root-cause defect requires a train-control software update to permanently correct.   MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 4,300 and 8,200 miles.



· The last Central Section dynamic testing ‘window’ took place on 24-27 Aug involving further testing of the transitions to and from the Network Rail Great Eastern line. The testing was relatively productive but there were a number of issues with getting the trains working consistently in ‘integrated’ mode (all on-train signalling systems working simultaneously, as is required for transitions testing) and an error in the trackside signalling programming all of which affected testing efficiency. 



· New Siemens signalling software for the Central Section, correcting test-blocking defects in a previous version has been delivered to the Melton test-track and will be married in the next week with an updated ‘R7.2.2’ train-software release for integrated testing through to the end of September. The focus is on completing sufficient testing  to use this new configuration in Crossrail Test Window 12 (29 September),  and also validating a derivative in mid October for running in traffic hours on Network Rail which will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels.

 

· Weekly meetings continue between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL, to coordinate software releases, testing and bug fixing. This includes taking account of delays to central section infrastructure and changes to dynamic testing. Direct Bombardier/Siemens liaison and escalation meetings are also taking place. A plan to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s system integration capability and resource is now in development. 

 

Development testing for Release 7.3  on-train software to be used for Heathrow services over the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system has continued ahead of the next test run on 31st August, but delays to the BT/Siemens Central Section R7.2.2 software has continued to impact the Release 7.3 programme.  Bombardier has this week submitted a programme, currently under review by TfL, which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service by 6 February 2019. TfL and BT are exploring the potential to bring this date forward, but this would not be straightforward as it would also require a specific safety case to allow sufficient time for driver familiarisation and training in advance.  



· With a large amount of testing and a number of software releases, updates and derogations all requiring approval, assurance is a continuing focus. Assurance resources and production of evidence are critical constraints on the ability to bring updated software into use. Bombardier continues to seeking an increase in the number of signalling assurance engineers. 






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
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard; Wild Mark (MD)
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 25 September 2018 08:24:59
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update (HS) 240918.docx

A few suggested amendments – Mark may have views on the Systems Integration section as he was present
 throughout.
Howard

From: Mannah Sylvia [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 24 September 2018 18:54
To: Howard Smith; Lucy Findlay; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard; Wild Mark (MD)
Subject: RE: Weekly note

Howard,
Thanks. Please find the latest version of the note attached. This includes your final note. Please let
 Richard know if you have any final comments on the CRL section before it goes to Mike’s office.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Howard Smith [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 24 September 2018 18:41
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Sylvia (and Richard),
Please find final version attached.
In terms of comments:
Removed ref to brief drop in availability, as suggested
Numbers are actually best/worst case weekly figures – I’ve always used these but have amended the
 wording, which hadn’t been picked up before.
I’ve left national rail lower case – its Network Rail that should have capitals?
Yes 6 Feb is BT’s date for Stage 2 Phase 2 but as this would require driver training in advance (and the date is
 risky) I’m not portraying it as that.
Stage 2 date – yes hopefully October but not absolutely hard wired to MOHS
Start of Stage 3 date – amended to Autumn 19 as suggested
Finally – Richard could you send me the latest version of the front part (the ‘CRL bit’) I didn’t get chance to
 glance through and it’s been deleted – thanks.
Kind regards and good hols to Sylvia
Howard

From: Mannah Sylvia [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 24 September 2018 10:44
To: Howard Smith; Lucy Findlay; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: Weekly note

Hi Howard,
Many thanks for your note. Please find it attached with some minor amends and some comments.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Howard Smith [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 21 September 2018 18:58
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Here you go…
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

1. Critical programme metrics for routeway construction are tracked weekly and actively monitored by Crossrail Ltd (CRL). The focus is particularly on installation release note (IRN) and static testing progress for the key routeway commodities. Further dDetails on progress will be included once the revised Master Operating Handover Schedule (MOHS) is finalised in October.   

Signalling implementation and Ttesting and Commissioing



1.4 The readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction took place on 21 September. The review chaired by an independent expert (Phil Threlfall) concluded that against key rolling stock, signalling software and infrastructure installation and testing readiness criteria, 5/2 dynamic testing would not commence on 22 October. No , however, a revised date for the start of the 5/2 dynamic testing was concluded at the meeting . CRL will consider the results of this first review and then put in place next steps.



1.5 Dynamic Testing window number 12 will take place on 29-30 September. Tests will include transition testing to the Great Eastern, testing at line speed in the tunnels testing and platform train interface testing. 

Systems integration



1.6 To strengthen Crossrail’s approach to systems integration, CRL convened a meeting involving CRL, TfL, RfL and MTR to agree a refreshed approach. Key actions were: 

· Commitment to a “one-team approach” (including key suppliers such as Bombardier Transportation, and Siemens and MTR) based on greater transparency and openness in dealings with one another

·  Gain further commitment from Siemens particularly through provision of adequate resources, including nominated Germany-based leaders 

· Closer involvement of Gain further input from BT and increase the transparency of their programme and status; and 

· Iimprove ATCs testing and commissioning activity performance.



1.7 In addition CRL has appointed a systems integration specialist who will review the current status of systems integration activity and put forward recommendations relating to revised structure, process, governance and accountabilities.

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



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, which is in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken to address this are summarised below, notably the introduction of 9 Car units into passenger service on Networks Rail’s infrastructure, planned for November. The intention is to re-start train delivery so that the remaining fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



· Old Oak Common Depot is in full operation. The fourth (of four) routes into and out of the depot has yet to be brought into use but the works rest with Network Rail on their infrastructure. 

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line, increasing in the next month to eleven with the conclusion of train modification works.  

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  MDSAF in the last week is in the range 4,191-6,635 miles.



· The latest Siemens signalling software for the Central Section is being tested at Melton Test Track with the latest ‘R7.2.2.5’ train-software release. Testing started on 12 September. As of 20 September out of the 29 formal tests to be undertaken, 21 tests had been completed with 7 passed, 4 are under analysis and 10 failed. Some of the more complex tests have been scheduled early in the cycle and the necessary fixes are already being programmed into further releases by Siemens and Bombardier. This is scheduled for 16 November.    



· BT continues to undertake work to validate the software which can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail. This will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and will help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels. The target for making submissions to the necessary safety bodies is 5 November.

 

· The next Test Window is scheduled for 28/29 September and will include further testing of the transition between the CBTC signalling and national rail (TPWS) signalling at Stratford, at the eastern end of the central tunnels.  



· Weekly meetings and daily calls continue between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL, to coordinate software releases, testing and bug fixing and respond to the results of Melton and central section dynamic testing. Bombardier and Siemens are also meeting bilaterally and TfL is holding escalation meetings with them where necessary. A plan is now being implemented to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s capability and resource to manage system integration. 

 

· Development of Release 7.3 on-train software continues. This will be used for Heathrow services utilising the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system. Bombardier has submitted a programme which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service for by 6 February 2019. TfL and BT continue to explore the potential to start driver training in advance of this date but this would also require an additional, specific, safety case and the immediate focus is on the 7.2 series software for dynamic testing in the central tunnels.    

 

· With a large amount of testing and a number of software releases, updates and derogations all requiring approval, software quality and assurance is the continuing focus. There was a meeting with BT senior management on 11 September at which their plans and initiatives to improve software quality were discussed.   




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
Sent: 21 September 2018 16:11
To: Howard Smith; Lucy Findlay
Cc: Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Price Amanda; Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard; Tucker John
Subject: RE: Weekly note

Thanks Howard.
From: Howard Smith [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 21 September 2018 16:08
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy
Cc: Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Price Amanda; Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard; Tucker John
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Later (but not too late!) today
H

From: Mannah Sylvia [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 21 September 2018 15:48
To: Lucy Findlay; Howard Smith
Cc: Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Price Amanda; Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard; Tucker John
Subject: RE: Weekly note

Lucy and Howard,
A gentle reminder for you’re the next version of the briefing please. If you can’t get it to me today,
 then first thing on Monday please.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 20 September 2018 14:23
To: Findlay Lucy; external howard Smith
Cc: Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Price Amanda; Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard; Tucker John
Subject: Weekly note

All,
Attached is the final version of the weekly note. Howard, Mike made some minor amends including
 amends to the BT section, but I’ve told his team that you’ve already shared it with BT so it’s only City
 Hall who have the amended version. The BT amends are in the second bullet point.
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
Cc: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon
Subject: Re: Weekly note
Date: 11 September 2018 14:00:35

Yes of course

H

Sent from my iPhone

On 11 Sep 2018, at 12:40, Mannah Sylvia < tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

Howard,
For the table at the end, can I put autumn 2019 for the launch of stage 3, it’s
 currently TBC.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs) 
Sent: 11 September 2018 07:20
To: external howard Smith
Cc: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon
Subject: Re: Weekly note
Ok, thanks Howard.
Andy

On 10 Sep 2018, at 21:38, Howard Smith < crossrail.co.uk> wrote:

Andy,
Thanks, I’d leave any further comment till we see how things progress
 - cautiously optimistic I’d say - but BT need to repeat the same as and
 when the FLU’s (9-cars) get running more miles.
Howard

Sent from my iPhone

On 10 Sep 2018, at 21:29, Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
 < tube.tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

And makes sense re MDSAF, thanks. Should we make
 that clearer in the note and actually say we view it as
 pretty much success? Or will that be too generous to BT.
Andy

On 10 Sep 2018, at 20:45, Mannah Sylvia
 < tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

Thanks Howard.

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed



Sent from my iPhone

On 10 Sep 2018, at 19:04, Howard Smith
 < crossrail.co.uk> wrote:

Thanks, amendments from BT
 (minor additions) and from
 Phil Clarke (Heathrow Para)
 all incorporated.
Re questions –  probably
 continues till they get
 certification for us to use
 FLU’s on NR – my guess mid-
end Oct.
Target MDSAF – 4300-8100 is
 OK versus 5000 as far as I am
 concerned. It’s not an exact
 science (as we know how long
 each incident lasts is as
 significant as number of
 incidents and are is very low –
 hence units with apparently
 ‘bad’ reliability supporting a
 ‘top of the table’ railway in
 TfL Rail.
Thanks and regards
Howard

From: Mannah Sylvia
 [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 10 September 2018 09:52
To: Brown Andy (Corporate
 Affairs); Howard Smith; Lucy
 Findlay; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note

Howard,
Thanks for this. I’ve included
 some minor amends and a
 comment on Andy’s
 version.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Brown Andy (Corporate
 Affairs) 
Sent: 10 September 2018 09:47
To: external howard Smith;
 Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Zavitz
 Richard
Cc: Adams Simon

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed



Subject: RE: Weekly note

Thanks very much Howard -
 I know you are swamped at
 the moment!
Some minor suggested
 tweaks tracked in the
 attached - mostly to tighten
 up some techy language
 but also a question about
 whether BT have now
 missed the end-of-August
 MDSAF target?
Andy

 | 
 
From: Howard Smith
 [mailto: crossrail.co.uk]
 
Sent: 10 September 2018 08:44
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy;
 Zavitz Richard; Brown Andy
 (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Draft Rolling Stock Weekly
 attached. Apologies for not
 circulating Friday night,
 comments today please.
Howard

From: Mannah Sylvia
 [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 07 September 2018 17:29
To: Lucy Findlay; Howard Smith;
 Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note

All to confirm, the answer is
 yes we need to provide the
 weekly note for next week.
From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 07 September 2018 16:45
To: Findlay Lucy; external howard
 Smith; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: Weekly note

Hi all,
Howard kindly reminded me
 about the weekly note. I’ve

NOTE: Links to attachments can be double-clicked to be accessed



 asked whether we need to
 produce it but I suspect the
 answer this time will be yes.
 Can I please have a draft by
 midday on Monday.
 Attached is the last version
 that was issued to them.
Thanks,
Sylvia
Sylvia Mannah

Transport for London | Senior
 Adviser to the Managing Director,
 London Underground
11B4 Palestra, 197 Blackfriars
 Road, London SE1 8NJ
Tel:  Ext: 
 Mob:  | E-mail:

 tfl.gov.uk
www.tfl.gov.uk

Click here to report this
 email as SPAM.
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From: Mannah Sylvia
To: external howard Smith; Findlay Lucy; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard; Wild Mark (MD)
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 24 September 2018 18:54:31
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 240918.docx

Howard,
Thanks. Please find the latest version of the note attached. This includes your final note.
 Please let Richard know if you have any final comments on the CRL section before it goes
 to Mike’s office.
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
Numbers are actually best/worst case weekly figures – I’ve always used these but have amended
 the wording, which hadn’t been picked up before.
I’ve left national rail lower case – its Network Rail that should have capitals?
Yes 6 Feb is BT’s date for Stage 2 Phase 2 but as this would require driver training in advance
 (and the date is risky) I’m not portraying it as that.
Stage 2 date – yes hopefully October but not absolutely hard wired to MOHS
Start of Stage 3 date – amended to Autumn 19 as suggested
Finally – Richard could you send me the latest version of the front part (the ‘CRL bit’) I didn’t get
 chance to glance through and it’s been deleted – thanks.
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
Many thanks for your note. Please find it attached with some minor amends and some
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
Cc: Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Price Amanda; Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard;
 Tucker John
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

1. Critical programme metrics for routeway construction are tracked weekly and actively monitored by Crossrail Ltd (CRL). The focus is particularly on installation release note (IRN) and static testing progress for the key routeway commodities. Details on progress will be included once the revised Master Operating Handover Schedule (MOHS) is finalised in October.   

Signalling implementation and testing



1.4 The readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction took place on 21 September. The review chaired by an independent expert (Phil Threlfall) concluded that against key rolling stock, software and infrastructure readiness criteria, 5/2 dynamic testing would not commence on 22 October, however, a revised date for the start of the 5/2 dynamic testing was concluded at the meeting . CRL will consider the results of this first review and then put in place next steps.



1.5 Dynamic Testing window number 12 will take place on 29-30 September. Tests will include transition testing to the Great Eastern, line speed testing and platform train interface testing. 

Systems integration



1.6 To strengthen Crossrail’s approach to systems integration, CRL convened a meeting involving CRL, TfL, RfL and MTR to agree a refreshed approach. Key actions were: 

· Commitment to a “one-team approach” (including Bombardier Transportation and Siemens) based on greater transparency and openness in dealings with one another

·  Gain further commitment from Siemens particularly through provision of adequate resources, including nominated Germany-based leaders 

· Gain further input from BT and increase the transparency of their programme and status; and improve ATCs testing and commissioning activity performance.



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

1. The review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued. The need and options for additional funding were discussed at the DfT portfolio board on 13 September and will now be raised at NR’s Executive committee on 2 October. 

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
A gentle reminder for you’re the next version of the briefing please. If you can’t get it to me
 today, then first thing on Monday please.
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
Attached is the final version of the weekly note. Howard, Mike made some minor amends
 including amends to the BT section, but I’ve told his team that you’ve already shared it with
 BT so it’s only City Hall who have the amended version. The BT amends are in the second
 bullet point.
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
Date: 24 September 2018 18:41:37
Attachments: Mayor-BT Chairmans Weekly 240918 (Final).docx

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
Date: 24 September 2018 16:21:36

On a separate note, there were two actions for CRL following the Transport Committee –
 one was to confirm if there are any penalty clauses with Berkley Homes in relation to
 Woolwich station. The other was to about providing a monthly note to the Assembly which
 we discussed last week.
I’m not sure how the actions are being progressed on the CRL end but Heidi has asked for
 CRL to send the Committee a response this week. On the monthly note, as we discussed, it
 should follow the same process as the weekly note but we will send the final version for you
 to issue to the Committee. We’re discussing the best timeline for this and Richard will share
 it with you later in the week.
If you have any questions, then do let me know.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Lucy Findlay [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 24 September 2018 15:51
To: Mannah Sylvia; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Sorry missed that one – I don’t believe that a specific date was agreed.
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
Sent: 24 September 2018 15:47
To: Lucy Findlay; Howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Thanks Lucy. What about the second comment please?
From: Lucy Findlay [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 24 September 2018 13:55
To: Mannah Sylvia; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Hi Sylvia
Re comment 1 – I don’t think the meeting concluded a revised date for 5/2commencement
Have a lovely holiday
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
Sent: 24 September 2018 13:07
To: Lucy Findlay; Howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Lucy,
Thank you very much for the note. Please find it attached with some minor amends and
 some comments. For info, I’m going to be on leave as of COP today and back in the office
 on Wednesday 3 Oct so Richard Z will pick up any additional comments that come up
 tomorrow and next week’s note.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Lucy Findlay [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 24 September 2018 12:53
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
To: Findlay Lucy; external howard Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 24 September 2018 13:07:07
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

Date: 20 24 September 2018

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



1.8 The readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction took place on 21 September. The review chaired by an independent expert (Phil Threlfall) concluded that against key rolling stock, software and infrastructure readiness criteria, 5/2 dynamic testing would not commence on 22 October. CRL will consider the results of this first review and then put in place next steps.



1.9 Dynamic Testing window number 11 12 will tookake place on 15-1629-30 September. Tests will include transition testing to the Great Eastern, line speed testing and platform train interface testing. 

Systems integration



1.10 To strengthen Crossrail’s approach to systems integration, CRL convened a meeting involving CRL, TfL, RfL and MTR to agree a refreshed approach. Key actions were: 

· Commitment to a “one-team approach” (including Bombardier Transportation and Siemens) based on greater transparency and openness in dealings with one another

·  Gain further commitment from Siemens particularly through provision of adequate resources, including nominated Germany-based leaders 

· Gain further input from BT and increase the transparency of their programme and status; and improve ATCs testing and commissioning activity performance.



1.11 In addition CRL has appointed a systems integration specialist who will review the current status of systems integration activity and put forward recommendations relating to revised structure, process, governance and accountabilities.



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





1. A newThe new (MOHS) Master Operating Handover Schedule is due to be finalised in October and will include planned handover dates for the stations. 

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



· The latest Siemens signalling software for the Central Section is being tested at Melton Test Track with the latest ‘R7.2.2.4’ train-software release. Testing started on 12 September. As of 20 September, out of the 29 formal tests to be undertaken, 21 tests had been completed with 7 passed, 4 are under analysis and 10 failed. Some of the more complex tests have been scheduled early in the cycle and the necessary fixes are already being programmed into further releases by Siemens and Bombardier. This is scheduled for 16 November.    



· BT continues to undertake work to validate the software which can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail. This will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and will help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels. The target for making submissions to the necessary safety bodies is 5 November.

 



· The next Test Window is scheduled for 28/29 September and will include further testing of the transition between the CBTC signalling and National Rail (TPWS) signalling at Stratford, at the eastern end of the central tunnels.  

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
Date: 24 September 2018 12:53:27
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

1. Critical programme metrics for routeway construction are tracked weekly and actively monitored by Crossrail Ltd (CRL). The focus is particularly on installation release note (IRN) and static testing progress for the key routeway commodities

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



1.8 The readiness review for entry into 5 day testing/2 day construction took place on 21 September. The review chaired by an independent expert (Phil Threlfall) concluded that against key rolling stock, software and infrastructure readiness criteria 5/2 dynamic testing would not commence on 22 October. CRL will consider the results of this first review and then put in place next steps..



1.9 Dynamic Testing window number 11 12 will tookake place on 15-1629-30 September. Tests will include transition testing to the Great Eastern, line speed testing and platform train interface testing.Network Rail (NR) completed the required overhead line installation allowing transition testing of the interface with Great Western to commence at slow speed. A number of positive activities and tests were achieved including:

1.10 Positive testing of the transition from TPWS to CBTC moving from the Great Western to the central tunnel section on Line 6 

1.11 For the first time, trains were fully prepared offsite ahead of time and successfully transited directly in from the Old Oak Common Depot for the testing window 

1.12 A new tool recording train data and CCTV from the driver’s cab was used, making analysis of results easier 

1.13 Outcomes were largely in line with pre-testing at the Crossrail Integration Facility (CIF) meaning future tests should be more predictable.

1.14 What was not achieved during the testing includes:

1.15 The full transition from CBTC to ECTS/TPWS leaving the tunnel 

1.16 The physical location of some track balises were not consistent with the on-board track database 

1.17 The train still requires resetting when reversing and operating using the more complex modes.

1.18 Further software updates from both Siemens and BT (currently under test at Melton) are needed to address these issues and considerable further transition testing (but less disruptive to NR) will be required. Subject to further Melton testing this week, new train and wayside software is expected to be available for use in October. In addition CRL continues to look at enhancements to collaboration between the two contracts and at improving System Integration more widely.

1.19   

Systems integration



1.20 To strengthen Crossrail’s approach to systems integration CRL convened a meeting involving CRL, TfL, RfL and MTR to agree a refreshed approach. Key actions were: commitment to a “one-team approach” (including Bombardier Transportation and Siemens) based on greater transparency and openness in dealings with one another; gain further commitment from Siemens particularly through provision of adequate resources, including nominated Germany-based leaders; gain further input from BT and increase the transparency of their programme and status; and improve ATCs testing and commissioning activity performance.



1.21 In addition CRL has appointed a systems integration specialist who will review the current status of systems integration activity and put forward recommendations relating to revised structure, process, governance and accountabilities.



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

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  The most common event (though with small impact per incident and seen on the 7-car fleet only) remains the loss of the driver’s information screen requiring a manual reset. Bombardiers have recently introduced a further operational control that reduces the incidence of this failure. MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 3,842 and 8,506 miles.



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
To: "Howard Smith"; Findlay Lucy; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 24 September 2018 10:43:58
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
Date: 21 September 2018 18:58:02
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

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line, increasing in the next month to eleven with the conclusion of train modification works. Availability dropped briefly at the start of the week but has since recovered. 

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 4,191 and 6,635 miles.



· The latest Siemens signalling software for the Central Section is being tested at Melton Test Track with the latest ‘R7.2.2.4’ train-software release. Testing started on 12 September. As it 20 September out of 29 formal tests to be undertaken, 21 tests had been completed with 7 passed, 4 under analysis and 10 failed. Some of the more complex tests have been scheduled early in the cycle and the necessary fixes are already being programmed into further releases by Siemens and Bombardier scheduled for 16 November.    



· BT continues to undertake work to validate the software which can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail. This will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels. The target for making submissions to the necessary safety bodies is 5th November.

 



· The next Test Window is scheduled for 28/29 September and will include further testing of the transition between the CBTC signalling and national rail (TPWS) signalling at Stratford, at the eastern end of the central tunnels.  

· Weekly meetings and daily calls continue between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL, to coordinate software releases, testing and bug fixing and respond to the results of Melton and central section dynamic testing. Bombardier and Siemens are also meeting bilaterally and TfL is holding escalation meetings with them where necessary. A plan to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s system integration capability and resource is now underway. 

 

· Development of Release 7.3 on-train software continues. This will be used for Heathrow services utilising the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system. Bombardier has submitted a programme which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service by 6 February 2019. TfL and BT continue to explore the potential to start driver training in advance of this date but this would also require an additional, specific, safety case and the immediate focus is on the 7.2 series software for dynamic testing in the central tunnels.    

 

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
Date: 21 September 2018 18:57:56
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



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, which is in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED]new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken to address this are summarised below, with the urgency being to re-start train delivery so that the remaining fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



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
To: "Howard Smith"; Findlay Lucy
Cc: Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Price Amanda; Adams Simon; Zavitz

 Richard; Tucker John
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 21 September 2018 16:10:34

Thanks Howard.
From: Howard Smith [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 21 September 2018 16:08
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy
Cc: Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Price Amanda; Adams Simon;
 Zavitz Richard; Tucker John
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
A gentle reminder for you’re the next version of the briefing please. If you can’t get
 it to me today, then first thing on Monday please.
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
Attached is the final version of the weekly note. Howard, Mike made some minor
 amends including amends to the BT section, but I’ve told his team that you’ve
 already shared it with BT so it’s only City Hall who have the amended version.
 The BT amends are in the second bullet point.
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
Date: 21 September 2018 15:47:51

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
Cc: Adams Simon; Zavitz Richard; Clarke Phil (ELLP)
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 28 September 2018 19:25:46
Attachments: Mayor-BT Chairmans Weekly 011018.docx

Latest Draft BT Weekly, words on dynamic testing window to be completed Monday. Other comments
 Monday please.
Good weekend
Howard

From: Howard Smith 
Sent: 21 September 2018 18:58
To: 'Mannah Sylvia'; Lucy Findlay; Brown Andy ( tube.tfl.gov.uk)
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



Elizabeth line - Bombardier Weekly Report 1 Oct 2018



Note No: 27



Key Activities and Issues



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken are summarised below including the introduction of 9 Car units into passenger service on Networks Rail’s infrastructure, planned for November. The intention is to re-start train delivery so that the remaining fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



· Old Oak Common Depot is in full operation.  

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line.  

 

· Bombardier’s reliability growth plan based on the mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault). The target has been reduced to 7800 miles by 10 November (previously 13000 miles). This is supported by an updated programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  MDSAF in the last full four weeks (Period 6) was 5340 miles, up from 3060 miles in the previous Period. Although reliability is not growing as fast as previously planned, which is not good, the impact of any incidents is being reduced by better response and in Period 6 TfL Rail service performance was the best of any operator nationwide.    



· The latest Siemens signalling software for the Central Section has been tested at Melton Test Track with the latest R7.2.2.5 train-software. Tests were completed on 26 September and of the 29 formal tests to be undertaken, 12 passed, 10 failed and 7 are under analysis (the test may have been ‘passed’ but with a subsequent or related fault occurring which requires investigation). A productive review session with Siemens, CRL and RfL was held at Melton 27 September and the necessary fixes are being analysed and programmed into further releases by Bombardier (next release planned to be available for testing from 16 November) and Siemens (date to be confirmed this week).    



· BT continues to undertake work to validate the software which can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail. This will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and will help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels. The target for making submissions to the necessary safety bodies remains 5 November.

 

· The last Test Window took place 28/29 September and included further testing of the transition between the CBTC signalling and national rail (TPWS) signalling at Stratford, at the eastern end of the central tunnels as well as running at full speed in the tunnels themselves [add words on Monday].  



· In addition to the daily and weekly meetings between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL a plan is now being implemented to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s capability and resource to manage system integration. 

 

· Development of Release 7.3 on-train software continues. This will be used for Heathrow services utilising the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system. Bombardier has submitted a programme which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service for by 6 February 2019. BT are actively exploring the potential to start driver training in advance of this date and how any additional, specific, safety case requirements can be met to allow this to happen.    

 

· With a large amount of testing and a number of software releases, updates and derogations all requiring approval, software quality and assurance is the continuing focus.    




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

		Under Review 



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
To: Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard; external howard Smith
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 11 September 2018 12:45:06
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 110918.docx

Lucy and Howard,
Thanks for the contributions. Attached is the version I will be sharing with Andy shortly.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Lucy Findlay [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 11 September 2018 11:36
To: Mannah Sylvia; Zavitz Richard; external howard Smith
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Suggested text for 3.1
3.1 Dynamic Testing window number 10 took place on 7 September. Testing was reduced to a single day
 due to Network Rail (NR) overhead line works for Crossrail not being completed in time to enable transition
 testing on the interface of the Great Western. CRL has now agreed a plan with NR and stakeholders to
 enable completion of a minimum work scope for overhead line works during two nights this week to enable
 transition testing at low speeds to take place during test window 11 commencing 15 September.
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
Sent: 11 September 2018 11:01
To: Zavitz Richard; Lucy Findlay; Howard Smith
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Lucy,
Thanks for the revised note. Do you have an update on Richard’s point below please?
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Zavitz Richard 
Sent: 10 September 2018 16:17
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; external howard Smith
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Hi Lucy,
On the following point:
3.1 Dynamic Testing window number 10 took place on 7 September. Testing was reduced to a single day
 due to Network Rail (NR) works not being complete to enable transition testing on the interface of the
 Great Western or further transition testing on the Great Eastern.
Would you be able to provide clarity on what works were not complete and the reason why (for both the
 east and west transition)? Were NR doing these works directly for Crossrail or were they part of a wider
 work package?
Thanks
Richard

From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 10 September 2018 15:37
To: Findlay Lucy; external howard Smith; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Lucy,
Thanks again for this. Now attached with some minor amends and a few questions from
 Steph and I,
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








Sent: 10 September 2018 13:00
To: Mannah Sylvia; external howard Smith; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Here you go Sylvia – apologies for delay. You may want to include an intro line on what’s
 happened in terms of Autumn 2019 delivery since last briefing?
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
To: Lucy Findlay; Howard Smith; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: Weekly note
Hi all,
Howard kindly reminded me about the weekly note. I’ve asked whether we need to produce
 it but I suspect the answer this time will be yes. Can I please have a draft by midday on
 Monday. Attached is the last version that was issued to them.
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
Re questions – pause probably
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
https://www.mailcontrol.com/sr/P2+Om0p9SonGX2PQPOmvUuccc+J3Pw4GCTLMrEQMvjziyB2ekhf!nl81xgxp6vkxDMJ5!cEzew4WkFyhp8LJ4g==


From: Mannah Sylvia
To: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); external howard Smith
Cc: Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 11 September 2018 12:40:07

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
Thanks, I’d leave any further comment till we see how things progress - cautiously
 optimistic I’d say - but BT need to repeat the same as and when the FLU’s (9-cars)
 get running more miles.
Howard

Sent from my iPhone

On 10 Sep 2018, at 21:29, Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
 < tube.tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

And makes sense re MDSAF, thanks. Should we make that clearer in
 the note and actually say we view it as pretty much success? Or will
 that be too generous to BT.
Andy

On 10 Sep 2018, at 20:45, Mannah Sylvia < tfl.gov.uk>
 wrote:

Thanks Howard.

Sent from my iPhone

On 10 Sep 2018, at 19:04, Howard Smith
 < crossrail.co.uk> wrote:

Thanks, amendments from BT (minor
 additions) and from Phil Clarke
 (Heathrow Para) all incorporated.
Re questions –  probably
 continues till they get certification for
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 us to use FLU’s on NR – my guess
 mid-end Oct.
Target MDSAF – 4300-8100 is OK
 versus 5000 as far as I am concerned.
 It’s not an exact science (as we know
 how long each incident lasts is as
 significant as number of incidents and
 are is very low – hence units with
 apparently ‘bad’ reliability supporting a
 ‘top of the table’ railway in TfL Rail.
Thanks and regards
Howard
From: Mannah Sylvia
 [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 10 September 2018 09:52
To: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Howard
 Smith; Lucy Findlay; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Howard,
Thanks for this. I’ve included some
 minor amends and a comment on
 Andy’s version.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs) 
Sent: 10 September 2018 09:47
To: external howard Smith; Mannah Sylvia;
 Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Thanks very much Howard - I know you
 are swamped at the moment!
Some minor suggested tweaks tracked in
 the attached - mostly to tighten up
 some techy language but also a
 question about whether BT have now
 missed the end-of-August MDSAF
 target?
Andy

 | 
From: Howard Smith
 [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 10 September 2018 08:44
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Zavitz
 Richard; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Draft Rolling Stock Weekly attached.
 Apologies for not circulating Friday
 night, comments today please.
Howard
From: Mannah Sylvia
 [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
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Sent: 07 September 2018 17:29
To: Lucy Findlay; Howard Smith; Zavitz
 Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
All to confirm, the answer is yes we
 need to provide the weekly note for
 next week.
From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 07 September 2018 16:45
To: Findlay Lucy; external howard Smith;
 Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: Weekly note
Hi all,
Howard kindly reminded me about
 the weekly note. I’ve asked whether
 we need to produce it but I suspect
 the answer this time will be yes. Can
 I please have a draft by midday on
 Monday. Attached is the last version
 that was issued to them.
Thanks,
Sylvia
Sylvia Mannah
Transport for London | Senior Adviser to the
 Managing Director, London Underground
11B4 Palestra, 197 Blackfriars Road, London
 SE1 8NJ
Tel:  Ext:  Mob: 
  | E-mail:
 tfl.gov.uk
www.tfl.gov.uk
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From: Lucy Findlay
To: Mannah Sylvia; Zavitz Richard; external howard Smith
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 11 September 2018 11:35:56

Suggested text for 3.1
3.1 Dynamic Testing window number 10 took place on 7 September. Testing was reduced to a single day due
 to Network Rail (NR) overhead line works for Crossrail not being completed in time to enable transition
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
 to Network Rail (NR) works not being complete to enable transition testing on the interface of the Great
 Western or further transition testing on the Great Eastern.
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
Thanks again for this. Now attached with some minor amends and a few questions from Steph and I,
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Lucy Findlay [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 10 September 2018 13:00
To: Mannah Sylvia; external howard Smith; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Here you go Sylvia – apologies for delay. You may want to include an intro line on what’s happened in terms
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 of Autumn 2019 delivery since last briefing?
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
Howard kindly reminded me about the weekly note. I’ve asked whether we need to produce it but I
 suspect the answer this time will be yes. Can I please have a draft by midday on Monday. Attached is
 the last version that was issued to them.
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
To: Zavitz Richard; Findlay Lucy; external howard Smith
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 11 September 2018 11:01:15

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
To: Mannah Sylvia; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 10 September 2018 19:04:11
Attachments: Mayor-BT Chairmans Weekly 100918 (FINAL).docx

Thanks, amendments from BT (minor additions) and from Phil Clarke (Heathrow Para) all
 incorporated.
Re questions –  probably continues till they get certification for us to use FLU’s on NR – my
 guess mid-end Oct.
Target MDSAF – 4300-8100 is OK versus 5000 as far as I am concerned. It’s not an exact science
 (as we know how long each incident lasts is as significant as number of incidents and are is very
 low – hence units with apparently ‘bad’ reliability supporting a ‘top of the table’ railway in TfL
 Rail.
Thanks and regards
Howard

From: Mannah Sylvia [mailto: tfl.gov.uk] 
Sent: 10 September 2018 09:52
To: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); Howard Smith; Lucy Findlay; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note

Howard,
Thanks for this. I’ve included some minor amends and a comment on Andy’s version.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs) 
Sent: 10 September 2018 09:47
To: external howard Smith; Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note

Thanks very much Howard - I know you are swamped at the moment!
Some minor suggested tweaks tracked in the attached - mostly to tighten up some techy
 language but also a question about whether BT have now missed the end-of-August
 MDSAF target?
Andy

 | 
From: Howard Smith [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 10 September 2018 08:44
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Draft Rolling Stock Weekly attached. Apologies for not circulating Friday night, comments today
 please.
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

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 5,000 miles by end of Period 5 (18August) and 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  The most common event  (though with small impact per incident and seen on the 7-car fleet only) is still the loss of the driver’s information screen requiring a manual reset. Bombardier have recently introduced a further operational control that reduces the incidence of this failure and the benefit of this is beginning to be seen in the reliability figures but the root-cause defect requires a train-control software update to permanently correct. MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 4,300 and 8,100 miles.



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













All to confirm, the answer is yes we need to provide the weekly note for next week.
From: Mannah Sylvia 
Sent: 07 September 2018 16:45
To: Findlay Lucy; external howard Smith; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: Weekly note

Hi all,
Howard kindly reminded me about the weekly note. I’ve asked whether we need to
 produce it but I suspect the answer this time will be yes. Can I please have a draft by
 midday on Monday. Attached is the last version that was issued to them.
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
Re questions – pause probably continues till they get certification for us to use FLU’s on NR – my
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
Date: 10 September 2018 16:17:24

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
https://www.mailcontrol.com/sr/26zoXX0CYyDGX2PQPOmvUoXql5p1BlpRAC3QDs1NWcZ2FBalHOHd7+gr34+D+YjADMJ5!cEzew6zR1Lppn2zgQ==


From: Lucy Findlay
To: Mannah Sylvia; external howard Smith; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 10 September 2018 16:11:20
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 100918 SD Comments LF response.docx

Here you go.
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

Date: 28 11 August September 2018

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

· Cabling: 96 per cent complete (vs forecast 97 98 per cent complete): 4,9252,442m completed in week 	Comment by stephaniedoyne: Last week it said 96% against a target of 97% complete - can we just check that 98% is correct? YES IT IS	Comment by SylviaMannah: Why is there no change to this percentage? BECAUSE DOING 2442M IN THE WEEK HAS NOT INCREASED THE PER CENT COMPLETE

· Tunnel Walkways: 88 91 per cent complete (vs forecast 86 90 per cent complete):  844m 1,244m completed in week

· Firemain: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 89 per cent complete): Two anchors, five hydrants and 3 valves installed

· Drainage: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 92 95 per cent complete): all stations shafts and portals tie-in inspections completed	Comment by stephaniedoyne: Last week it said 89% against a target of 92% complete - can we just check that 95% is correct? YES IT IS	Comment by SylviaMannah: Why is there no change to this percentage? BECAUSE THEY HAVEN’T BEEN WORING ON IT THIS WEEK

· Permanent tunnel ventilation: 96 97 per cent complete (vs forecast 97 98 per cent complete): Final completion is pending the Installation Release Notes (IRN) sign off, snagging items and resolution of constraints around Bond Street West

1. Availability of resources for testing of communication equipment continues to constrain testing activities. Although testing activities are not on the critical path for Dynamic Testing, the completion of testing is required for the start of Trial Operations.  A revised schedule has been prepared by CRL that will require fewer resources, though still more than presently available.  CRL is investigating how to source more trained resources with Siemens.  

1. Static testing of all assets remainsis behind plan. Measured by the first testing stage of station IRN’s, actual completion is at 45 40 per cent (vs plan 79 87 per cent). IRNs are being prioritised and actively monitored by all contracts but progress is slowed by both the resource challenges to produce the evidence documentation and the progress of the physical works.  CRL is monitoring the process across all sites and is reviewing has reviewed the latest IRN completion statistics for accuracy.   Actual completion has reduced due to a reassessment of how completion was being measured.	Comment by SylviaMannah: Can anything be done to speed this up? NO APART FROM WHAT IS STATED IN SENTENCE 2	Comment by stephaniedoyne: Last week this was 45% vs 79% - can you check this is correct? THESE ARE THE CONSOLIDTED UPDATED FIGURES. SEE LAST SENTENCE FOR EXPLANATION IN DECREASE	Comment by SylviaMannah: How can we only realise now that this was being measured wrongly. Is there a review into all the other measurements to ensure they’re reflective. THERE WAS A SLIGHT DIFFERENCE IN INTERPRETATION OF WHAT COMPLETE INCLUDED. METRICS ARE REGULARLY REVIEWED FOR ACCURACY

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

1. CRL will switch from the current approach to Dynamic Testing of 11 day construction/3 day testing to a 5 day testing/2 day construction approach on 5 November 2018 which is a key milestone to ensure we launch Stage 3 in autumn 2019., instead of the previous estimate of 22 October 2018.  This will allow enable a more concentrated focus on software testing and any bug fixing required.    

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

1. TA follow-up meeting was held on Monday 20 August to continue the review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued. NR  Network Rail is preparing anhas shared an options report to share with Sponsors that will outline the available options and the priorities for the works and will present to the DfT portfolio board on 13 September.   

1. NR are still planning to undertake enabling work at the western stations over the important Christmas works period that will include the installation of the overbridges.  

1. Local authorities are likely to challenge vigorously any reductions in scope or delays to delivery. This will add to schedule pressure which will have already been extended by the potential need to reprice the works.	Comment by SylviaMannah: Is this still valid following the delay announcement? NR IS STILL PUBLICALLY COMMITTED TO DELIVERING THESE STATION UPGRADES BY DECEMBER 2019

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
Date: 10 September 2018 15:37:20
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
Date: 10 September 2018 13:00:59
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update xx0918.docx

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

Date: 28 xx August September 2018

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

· Cabling: 96 per cent complete (vs forecast 97 98 per cent complete): 4,9252,442m completed in week 

· Tunnel Walkways: 88 91 per cent complete (vs forecast 86 90 per cent complete):  844m 1,244m completed in week

· Firemain: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 89 per cent complete): Two anchors, five hydrants and 3 valves installed

· Drainage: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 92 95 per cent complete): all stations shafts and portals tie-in inspections completed

· Permanent tunnel ventilation: 96 97 per cent complete (vs forecast 97 98 per cent complete): Final completion is pending the Installation Release Notes (IRN) sign off, snagging items and resolution of constraints around Bond Street West

1. Availability of resources for testing of communication equipment continues to constrain testing activities. Although testing activities are not on the critical path for Dynamic Testing, the completion of testing is required for the start of Trial Operations.  A revised schedule has been prepared by CRL that will require fewer resources, though still more than presently available.  CRL is investigating how to source more trained resources with Siemens.  

1. Static testing of all assets remainsis behind plan. Measured by the first testing stage of station IRN’s, actual completion is at 45 40 per cent (vs plan 79 87 per cent). IRNs are being prioritised and actively monitored by all contracts but progress is slowed by both the resource challenges to produce the evidence documentation and the progress of the physical works.  CRL is monitoring the process across all sites and is reviewing the latest IRN completion statistics for accuracy.   Actual completion has reduced due to a reassessment of how completion was being measured.

Signalling implementation and testing

1. Dynamic Testing window number 9 10 took place on 7 September. Testing was reduced to a single day due to Network Rail works not being complete to enable transition testing on the interface of the Great Western or further transition testing on the Great Eastern. this weekend between Friday 24 August and Tuesday 28 August.  Testing included:  

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

1. CRL will switch from the current approach to Dynamic Testing of 11 day construction/3 day testing to a 5 day testing/2 day construction approach on 5 November 2018, instead of the previous estimate of 22 October 2018.  This will allow a more concentrated focus on software testing and any bug fixing required.    

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

1. TA follow-up meeting was held on Monday 20 August to continue the review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued.  Network Rail is preparing anhas shared an options report to share with Sponsors that will outline the available options and the priorities for the works and will present to the DfT portfolio board on 13 September.   

1. NR are still planning to undertake enabling work at the western stations over the important Christmas works period that will include the installation of the overbridges.  

1. Local authorities are likely to challenge vigorously any reductions in scope or delays to delivery. This will add to schedule pressure which will have already been extended by the potential need to reprice the works.

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
To: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs); external howard Smith; Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 10 September 2018 09:52:17
Attachments: Mayor-BT Chairmans Weekly 100918 ab.docx

Howard,
Thanks for this. I’ve included some minor amends and a comment on Andy’s
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
Draft Rolling Stock Weekly attached. Apologies for not circulating Friday night,
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
 produce it but I suspect the answer this time will be yes. Can I please have a draft
 by midday on Monday. Attached is the last version that was issued to them.
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



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. 	Comment by SylviaMannah: [REDACTED] 



· Old Oak Common Depot is in full operation. The fourth (of four) routes into and out of the depot has yet to be brought into use but the works are being carried out by rest with Network Rrail as it is on their infrastructure. 

 

· Four 7-Car trains continue to be used on TfL Rail services between Paddington and Hayes & Harlington based at Old Oak Common. Ten 7-Car trains are available for passenger service on the Liverpool Street to Shenfield line, increasing in the next month to eleven trains with the conclusion of train modification works.   Availability continues to be very good on both routes. 

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 5,000 miles by end of Period 5 (18 August) and 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  The most common event  (though with small impact per incident and seen on the 7-car fleet only) is still the loss of the driver’s information screen requiring a manual reset,  but the root-cause defect requires a train-control software update to permanently correct.   MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 4,300 and 8,100 miles.	Comment by andrewbrown2: I’m assuming the target is for a minimum of 5,000 MDSAF, therefore with a low of 4,300 we have missed it? Do we need to acknowledge that and/or is Bombardier revising their plan? Or is 4,300-8,100 actually OK against that target?



· The Nnew Siemens signalling software for the Central Section, correcting test-blocking defects in a previous version has been delivered to the Melton test-track and is being tested with an updated ‘R7.2.2’ train-software release, for integrated testing through to the end of September. Initial testing w/c 10 September/9 identified a number of issues and both Bombardier and Siemens are making further adjustments (Bombardier releasing 7.2.2.4) before restarting testing this week.



· The combined focus is on completing testing at Melton so thatto first use this new configuration can be used in Crossrail Test Window 12 (29 September) and subsequently in Crossrail Dynamic Testing, which is targeted for 22nd October. The intention also remains to validate a derivative software version in October that can be used for running in traffic hours on Network Rail, which will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels.

 

· Weekly meetings continue between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL, to coordinate software releases, testing and bug fixing, and to take account of delays to central section infrastructure and changes to dynamic testing. Bombardier and Siemens are also meeting bilaterally and TfL is holding escalation meetings with them where necessaryas well as bilateral meetings between BT and Siemens. This includes taking account of delays to central section infrastructure and changes to dynamic testing. Direct Bombardier/Siemens liaison and escalation meetings are also taking place.  A plan to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s system integration capability and resource is now in development. 

 

· Development testing has continued for Release 7.3 on-train software, which will to be used for Heathrow services over the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system. has continued with tThe next test run was due to take place on 31st August, but delays to the BombardierT/Siemens Central Section R7.2.2 software haves continued to impact the Release 7.3 programme.  Bombardier has submitted a programme, currently under review by TfL, which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service by 6th February 2019.  In addition to identifying any possible improvements to this date, there is a need to precede this with a version validated sufficiently in advance to allow a reasonable time for driver familiarisation and training on non-passenger carrying trips. An opportunity has been identified to do this from November 2018 but requiring a specific safety case to be developed that would allow training trips in normal traffic hours. The possibility of constructing such a case continues to be investigated by TfL and BombardierT.   

 

· With a large amount of testing and a number of software releases, updates and derogations all requiring approval, software quality and assurance is the continuing focus. Good quality software reduces the burden on testing and assurance resources which are critical constraints on the ability to bring updated software into use.  Bombardier  continues to  seeking an increase in the number of signalling assurance engineers. 






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



· 54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED] new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. 	Comment by SylviaMannah: [REDACTED] 



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
Date: 10 September 2018 09:46:38
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



· New Siemens signalling software for the Central Section, correcting test-blocking defects in a previous version has been delivered to the Melton test-track and is being tested with an updated ‘R7.2.2’ train-software release, for integrated testing through to the end of September. Initial testing w/c 10 September/9 identified a number of issues and both Bombardier and Siemens are making further adjustments (Bombardier releasing 7.2.2.4) before restarting testing this week.



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
To: "Howard Smith"; Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Adams Simon
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 10 September 2018 09:46:37
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
To: Howard Smith; Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard
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



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED]new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. 



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
Date: 10 September 2018 08:44:27
Attachments: Mayor-BT Chairmans Weekly 100918.docx

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
https://www.mailcontrol.com/sr/laFtnyUC0hvGX2PQPOmvUs3i7gRn49HgCTLMrEQMvjxXfsUzM1MTVxDnsAaRdIh5DMJ5!cEzew4WkFyhp8LJ4g==

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

 

· Bombardier’s current reliability growth plan is for a mean distance between service affecting failures (MDSAF, a standard industry measure based on any delay over 3 minutes caused by a train fault) of 5,000 miles by end of Period 5 (18August) and 13,000 by end of Period 8 (10 November) supported by a programme of modifications, progress with which is tracked weekly.  The most common event  (though with small impact per incident and seen on the 7-car fleet only) is still the loss of the driver’s information screen requiring a manual reset,  but the root-cause defect requires a train-control software update to permanently correct.   MDSAF in the last month has ranged between 4,300 and 8,100 miles.



· New Siemens signalling software for the Central Section, correcting test-blocking defects in a previous version has been delivered to the Melton test-track and is being tested with an updated ‘R7.2.2’ train-software release for integrated testing through to the end of September. Initial testing w/c 10/9 identified a number of issues and both Bombardier and Siemens are making further adjustments (Bombardier releasing 7.2.2.4) before restarting testing this week.



· The combined focus is on completing testing to first use this new configuration in Crossrail Test Window 12 (29 September) and subsequently in Crossrail Dynamic Testing which is targeted for 22nd October. The intention also remains to validate a derivative in October for running in traffic hours on Network Rail which will allow the 9-Car units to substantially increase the mileage operated and help build reliability prior to use in the Central Section tunnels.

 

· Weekly meetings continue between Bombardier, Siemens, Crossrail and TfL, to coordinate software releases, testing and bug fixing, as well as bilateral meetings between BT and Siemens. This includes taking account of delays to central section infrastructure and changes to dynamic testing. Direct Bombardier/Siemens liaison and escalation meetings are also taking place. A plan to further strengthen the Crossrail project’s system integration capability and resource is now in development. 

 

· Development testing for Release 7.3 on-train software to be used for Heathrow services over the European ‘ETCS’ signalling system has continued with the next test run on 31st August, but delays to the BT/Siemens Central Section R7.2.2 software has continued to impact the Release 7.3 programme.  Bombardier has submitted a programme, currently under review by TfL, which delivers the R7.3 train software configuration tested and validated for passenger service by 6th February 2019.  In addition to identifying any possible improvements to this date, there is a need to precede this with a version validated sufficiently in advance to allow a reasonable time for driver familiarisation and training on non-passenger carrying trips. An opportunity has been identified to do this from November 2018 but requiring a specific safety case to be developed that would allow training trips in normal traffic hours. The possibility of constructing such a case continues to be investigated by TfL and BT.   

 

· With a large amount of testing and a number of software releases, updates and derogations all requiring approval, software quality and assurance is the continuing focus. Good quality software reduces the burden on testing and assurance resources which are critical constraints on the ability to bring updated software into use. Bombardier continues to seeking an increase in the number of signalling assurance engineers. 






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
Date: 10 September 2018 08:44:22
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
Date: 07 September 2018 18:37:30

Cross eyed tonight will do RSD Monday.
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
https://www.mailcontrol.com/sr/o+6TooqN2CvGX2PQPOmvUmOJbwVFXRCWbZiGJIIp9mnezPsE9+W70NijkFk92qgWeAdUV1aejQoKghm6!2a+jw==


From: Mannah Sylvia
To: Findlay Lucy; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Gray James (Crossrail)
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Date: 24 September 2018 17:17:40

Yes the commitment was by Heidi but City Hall have asked for the note to come from CRL.
On Berkley homes, I think they said we would confirm.
From: Lucy Findlay [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 24 September 2018 17:15
To: Mannah Sylvia; Zavitz Richard
Cc: Gray James (Crossrail)
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Bit confused here – I thought the commitment to provide a monthly report was made by Heidi – are
 you asking that it is issued by CRL?
From the TfL transcript there doesn’t appear to be a follow up action regarding Berkeley homes
 “SW and DH said they are not aware of any penalty clauses with Berkley Homes in relation to
 Woolwich station.”
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
Sent: 24 September 2018 17:00
To: Zavitz Richard; Lucy Findlay
Subject: RE: Weekly note
Thanks Richard.
From: Zavitz Richard 
Sent: 24 September 2018 16:56
To: Mannah Sylvia; Findlay Lucy
Subject: Re: Weekly note
Hi Sylvia,
David's team did some work regarding Berkeley Homes, I'll ask for the latest and forward.
Richard

On Mon, Sep 24, 2018 at 4:21 PM +0100, "Mannah Sylvia" < tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

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
Cc: external howard Smith; Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon; Price Amanda; Tucker

 John
Subject: RE: Weekly update note
Date: 03 September 2018 09:19:47

All,
To confirm, no note is required for this week but as you can imagine, there will be requests for briefings
 so please be on standby to help.
Thanks,
Sylvia
From: Lucy Findlay [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 31 August 2018 16:32
To: Mannah Sylvia
Cc: external howard Smith; Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon;
 Price Amanda; Tucker John
Subject: Re: Weekly update note
Thanks Sylvia. I’ll be back in office Monday morning.

Lucy Findlay

On 31 Aug 2018, at 11:27, Mannah Sylvia < tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

Welcome back Howard.
I’m trying to get us out of it but I’m awaiting confirmation.
From: Howard Smith [mailto: crossrail.co.uk] 
Sent: 31 August 2018 16:26
To: Mannah Sylvia
Cc: Findlay Lucy; Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Zavitz Richard; Adams Simon;
 Price Amanda; Tucker John
Subject: Re: Weekly update note
Sylvia,
Dare I ask if we are required to do a report this week? Obviously there have been a number of diversions
 today as well as a lot of info - but if it’s needed will produce a rolling stock report first thing Monday (very
 little new from this week, I believe).
Kind regards
Howard

Sent from my iPad

On 29 Aug 2018, at 16:41, Mannah Sylvia < tfl.gov.uk> wrote:

Hi all,
With thanks to Richard and Phil, attached is the final version of this week’s note.
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
Subject: report
Date: 10 September 2018 13:54:00
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
Date: 13 September 2018 10:32:20
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

· Permanent tunnel ventilation: 97 per cent complete (vs forecast 98 per cent complete): final completion is pending the Installation Release Notes (IRN) sign off, snagging items and resolution of constraints around Bond Street West

1. Static testing of all assets remains behind plan. Measured by the first testing stage of station IRNs, actual completion is at 40 per cent (vs plan 87 per cent). IRNs are being prioritised and actively monitored by all contracts but progress is slowed by both the resource challenges to produce the evidence documentation and the progress of the physical works. CRL is monitoring the process across all sites and has reviewed the latest IRN completion statistics for accuracy. Actual completion has reduced due to a reassessment of how completion was being measured. There was a slight difference in interpretation of what complete included but all metrics are reviewed on a regular basis for accuracy. 

Signalling implementation and testing

1. Dynamic Testing window number 10 took place on 7 September. Testing was reduced to a single day due to Network Rail (NR) works not being complete to enable transition testing on the interface of the Great Western or further transition testing on the Great Eastern. 

1. DfT are assisting with prioritising NR activity to ensure works are completed for transition testing on 15 September.

1. CRL will switch from the current approach to Dynamic Testing of 11 day construction/3 day testing to a 5 day testing/2 day construction approach on 5 November 2018, which is a key milestone to ensure we launch Stage 3 in autumn 2019. This will enable a more concentrated focus on software testing and any bug fixing required.    

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

1. The review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works has continued. The figure has been amended from our previous estimate of [REDACTED] because we now have more knowledge about the tender estimated that NR has received. NR has shared an options report with Sponsors that outline the available options and the priorities for the works and will present to the DfT portfolio board on 13 September.   

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
Date: 17 September 2018 14:20:30
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 180918v4.docx

ATT00001.txt

I’m in a 2 hour meeting for now so for speed, please find the document attached.

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



· [bookmark: _GoBack]54 trains have been completed in Derby by Bombardier, which is in line with the plan, with 3 further units in production. TfL has [REDACTED]f new trains pending delivery of further validated software to allow greater use of the units on Network Rail infrastructure, and further reliability improvement of the existing fleet. The actions being taken to address this are summarised below with the urgency being to re-start train delivery so that the remaining fleet can be accepted by summer 2019 with deliveries at a steady and sustainable rate.  



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
Subject: Weekly Mayor Update 240918
Date: 24 September 2018 18:21:13
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 240918.docx

Richard,
Attached is the latest version. I’m just waiting for Howard’s final note and we can
 get this to Steph.
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

· Cabling: 96 per cent complete (vs forecast 97 98 per cent complete): 4,9252,442m completed in week 	Comment by SylviaMannah: Why is there no change to this percentage? 

· Tunnel Walkways: 88 91 per cent complete (vs forecast 86 90 per cent complete):  844m 1,244m completed in week

· Firemain: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 89 per cent complete): Two anchors, five hydrants and 3 valves installed

· Drainage: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 92 95 per cent complete): all stations shafts and portals tie-in inspections completed	Comment by SylviaMannah: Why is there no change to this percentage?

· Permanent tunnel ventilation: 96 97 per cent complete (vs forecast 97 98 per cent complete): Final completion is pending the Installation Release Notes (IRN) sign off, snagging items and resolution of constraints around Bond Street West

1. Availability of resources for testing of communication equipment continues to constrain testing activities. Although testing activities are not on the critical path for Dynamic Testing, the completion of testing is required for the start of Trial Operations.  A revised schedule has been prepared by CRL that will require fewer resources, though still more than presently available.  CRL is investigating how to source more trained resources with Siemens.  

1. Static testing of all assets remainsis behind plan. Measured by the first testing stage of station IRN’s, actual completion is at 45 40 per cent (vs plan 79 87 per cent). IRNs are being prioritised and actively monitored by all contracts but progress is slowed by both the resource challenges to produce the evidence documentation and the progress of the physical works.  CRL is monitoring the process across all sites and is reviewing the latest IRN completion statistics for accuracy.   Actual completion has reduced due to a reassessment of how completion was being measured.	Comment by SylviaMannah: Can anything be done to speed this up?	Comment by SylviaMannah: How can we only realise now that this was being measured wrongly. Is there a review into all the other measurements to ensure they’re reflective.

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
Date: 20 September 2018 14:23:05
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
Date: 07 September 2018 16:45:04
Attachments: Weekly Mayor Update 280818.docx

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

Date: 28 August 2018

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

· Cabling: 96 per cent complete (vs forecast 97 per cent complete): 4,925m completed in week 

· Tunnel Walkways: 88 per cent complete (vs forecast 86 per cent complete):  844m completed in week

· Firemain: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 89 per cent complete): Two anchors, five hydrants and 3 valves installed

· Drainage: 89 per cent complete (vs forecast 92 per cent complete): all stations shafts and portals tie-in inspections completed

· Permanent tunnel ventilation: 96 per cent complete (vs forecast 97 per cent complete): Final completion is pending the Installation Release Notes (IRN) sign off, snagging items and resolution of constraints around Bond Street West

1. Availability of resources for testing of communication equipment continues to constrain testing activities. Although testing activities are not on the critical path for Dynamic Testing, the completion of testing is required for the start of Trial Operations.  A revised schedule has been prepared by CRL that will require fewer resources, though still more than presently available.  CRL is investigating how to source more trained resources with Siemens.  

1. Static testing of all assets is behind plan. Measured by the first testing stage of IRN’s, actual completion is at 45 per cent (vs plan 79 per cent). IRNs are being prioritised and actively monitored by all contracts but progress is slowed by both the resource challenges to produce the evidence documentation and the progress of the physical works.  CRL is monitoring the process across all sites and is reviewing the latest IRN completion statistics for accuracy.   

Signalling implementation and testing

1. Dynamic Testing window number 9 took place this weekend between Friday 24 August and Tuesday 28 August.  Testing included:  

· Transition Testing on the interface to the Great Eastern (primarily Route Accessibility Testing)

· Line speed increase tests between Liverpool Street and Canary Wharf and between Whitechapel and Pudding Mill Lane

· Route Accessibility Testing between Farringdon and Paddington

· Electronic beacon / transponder testing in Westbourne Park

· Bombardier Testing of Transparent Link between signalling systems and Communications and Control Systems

· Radio system testing in the vicinity of Pudding Mill Lane

· Electromagnetic Compatibility (EMC) testing at Custom House and Plumstead

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

1. Progress on station escalators is between 92 per cent and 98 per cent complete across the programme.  Fit-out of escalator equipment starting at Bond Street.  

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

1. A follow-up meeting was held on Monday 20 August to continue the review of available options in regards to the expected [REDACTED] for the western station enhancement works.  Network Rail is preparing an options report to share with Sponsors that will outline the available options and the priorities for the works.   

1. NR are still planning to undertake enabling work at the western stations over the important Christmas works period that will include the installation of the overbridges.  

1. Local authorities are likely to challenge vigorously any reductions in scope or delays to delivery. This will add to schedule pressure which will have already been extended by the potential need to reprice the works.

Approvals for each stage

1. The overall approvals for each stage have not changed since the last weekly update.

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
Cc: Hughes David (Director of Strategy and Network Development); Price Amanda; Tucker John; Zavitz Richard;

 Adams Simon
Subject: Weekly note
Date: 13 September 2018 15:39:32
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
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